2016 £
2016 Annual Report

CORPOR
SHERD
SN © b Y
| :
2 =
2 =
N——/5 ‘
LN

@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.



4 A A

@Chiyu Banking Corporation Led,

EF=S

RIS
BT
=R E S
EEERE
AEAE
CEAVAES ST oy
SalEaR
SFeaeHlEmR
HEREARER
SEERBER
HERERER
MR

1. EHEH

2. EHEEHHE

w

© 00 N O O A

14.

15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.
24.

. FEF SRS 2 B G S lEt R HER

- s e B

- BENAFNAPE
PRI

- IR R U A

L S 71l

- Hpth B E AR
KRG AN

11.
12.

13.

B AR
EYF AP EHEE 2 OFFR) iiE

il EEYISE - i e 2SR

T

2351

BIRIER A

#E  sEEHEARKEZEAESME

RRAF B4 B BRI T R V61
SRE B LI A (L ATERE 2 SR
PGB AR @

SRR

EEROR

Frezid

CONTENTS

Financial Highlights
Five-Year Financial Summary
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Report of the Directors
Corporate Governance
Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Principal activities
2. Significant accounting policies
3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies
Financial risk management
Fair values of assets and liabilities
Net interest income
Net fee and commission income
Net trading gain

© ® N o g s

Net gain on other financial assets

10. Other operating income

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

12. Operating expenses

13. Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on investment

properties

14. Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
equipment

15. Taxation

16. Dividends

17. Retirement benefit costs

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s
emoluments

19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial
institutions

20. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

22. Advances and other accounts

23. Loan impairment allowances

24. Investment in securities

H#
PAGE

13
16
24
27
28
29
30
31

32
32

61

63
114
126
127
128
128
128
129
130

130

131
131
132
133
134

137
137
138
144

145
147



4 A A

@Chiyu Banking Corporation Led,

EF=S

25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30. #%
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39. 4
40.
41.
42.
43.

KB

Vst ~ 250 Rt
HA&EzE

EFEFK
HAhRTE e e
FERIH

FRZN
GrEdl e BRI
R A BRI
HAKYE
KETHERIE

B

pag ke

ERHERE
SRl TR IR
HREE
FHEZAREANLZS
B (EE

FEERATI P R AR

44, BEAMRMEREER

45, RERIT I EE A E]

46. FEZERENE]

AT, WITSERFALAE
*@%’F?’Zﬁﬁﬂ? HEr

1. - TS R RIS EE A
2. {DERFEREZHEE

3. NEEEARESER EUE TR E S
4. B (EEEE) STEATEEREE
5. R GHFEEEEAERRE

6. ﬁff%ﬂﬁfzéigﬁ

7. PERBEATER

8. IRFTRRAVHLIE R R

=t
TR

CONTENTS

25. Investment properties

26. Properties, plant and equipment

27. Other assets

28. Deposits from customers

29. Other accounts and provisions

30. Deferred taxation

31. Share capital

32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
33. Contingent liabilities and commitments
34. Capital commitments

35. Operating lease commitments

36. Litigation

37. Segmental reporting

38. Assets pledged as security

39. Offsetting financial instruments

40. Loans to directors

41. Significant related party transactions
42. International claims

43. Non-bank Mainland exposures

44. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity
45. Subsidiaries of the Bank

46. Ultimate holding company

47. Approval of financial statements

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

1. Regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks
Capital requirements for credit risk
Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
Counterparty credit risk-related exposures
Capital charge for market risk
Capital charge for operational risk

© N oA WD

Equity exposures in banking book

The Management
Branch Network

H#
PAGE

152
153
156
156
156
157
158
159
160
161
161
162
163
166
167
169
170
173
174
176
178
178
178

179
180
181
202
205
209
212
212

213
214



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

MBHE

Financial Highlights
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2016 2015 Change
SAE For the year fg’fgg /ﬁgﬁ% +- %
PEHUBE T 548 Net operating income before impairment
A allowances 1,305,763 1,267,338 +3.03
S-Syl Operating profit 783,390 624,560 +25.43
CR Nl Profit before taxation 768,623 641,299 +19.85
GSicyrvil Profit for the year 651,859 572,914 +13.78
s At year-end Wkeoos  rsoos v
FREAFO G H Capital and reserves 6,876,532 6,459,511 +6.46
T3 T RS A Issued and fully paid up share capital 300,000 300,000 -
BN Total assets 54,108,532 53,641,494 +0.87
WsEER Financial ratios % % +- %
SRR R Return on average total assets * 1.18 1.06 +0.12
PR RS R 2 Return on average shareholders’ equity 9.78 8.99 +0.79
AU AR Cost to income ratio 35.11 34.96 +0.15
£ipthR Loan to deposit ratio > 67.72 61.41 +6.31
TENMEEFELLRAEEE Y Average value of liquidity coverage ratio *
FFE First quarter 151.84 146.69 +5.15
E_FE Second quarter 149.42 186.18 -36.76
E=FE Third quarter 150.11 155.79 -5.68
BT Fourth quarter 140.99 139.37 +1.62
g AR Total capital ratio ® 19.61 18.21 +1.40
TR
1. SPIGHEE A O R = Profit for the year
Return on average total assets BRI E

2. PR AR R

Daily average balance of total assets

R
Profit for the year

Return on average shareholders’ equity

- %TH:TLAE"* H s -
TRUEER -

TREFE

R E LR E R DIRST A 2
FoAWAREE GRITSE CREbtk) B K%
i&%ﬁmﬂ} T (T2ER ) e
SRS T Z AR B RO M TAEAK -

GEEARLERTIIRE GRITEE (B BRI
Bt e kR E R SR AT 2 At
SRR SO M TR & DFE BT 5 -

B AR 2 0 S AR AR BR BRI A9 (E
Average of the beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross
advances to customers.

4. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the
unconsolidated basis which comprises the positions of local offices and
overseas branches of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”) for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules.

5. Total capital ratio is computed on the combined basis that comprises the
positions of local offices and overseas branches of the Bank specified by the
HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The financial information of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the last five years
commencing from 1 January 2012 is summarised below:

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
5T ST ST ST S s T
REUREE AT P Net operating income before
WA impairment allowances 1,305,763 1,267,338 1,178,718 1,157,875 1,237,803
=iyl Operating profit 783,390 624,560 775,052 746,736 844,696
FRFRA T F Profit before taxation 768,623 641,299 793,072 772,288 945,643
FEFERF] Profit for the year 651,859 572,914 639,334 656,676 770,509
SR HA AR IR Advances and other accounts 31,137,452 27,789,301 28,833,972 26,086,460 24,917,959
KRN Total assets 54,108,532 53,641,494 52,166,252 47,274,716 48,125,873
EFTERK Deposits from customers 45,437,620 44,760,914 43,942,837 39,108,485 39,383,682
B fEE Total liabilities 47,232,000 47,181,983 45,876,112 41,144,675 42,048,437
ELE T R4 R A Issued and fully paid up share
capital 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
REAKOfE Capital and reserves 6,876,532 6,459,511 6,290,140 6,130,041 6,077,436
MELER Financial ratios % % % % %
SRR FE O Return on average total assets 1.18 1.06 1.27 1.38 1.67
SEH R A A (B Return on average shareholders’
equity 9.78 8.99 10.30 10.76 13.54
BRASEU A R Cost to income ratio 35.11 34.96 34.73 32.02 26.92
HfFEthE Loan to deposit ratio 67.72 61.41 61.79 62.04 57.94
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2016, the global economy experienced divergent growth. In the US, the
recovery stayed on track and has entered a rate hike cycle. However, in the
Eurozone the recovery remained fragile and could be further held back after
the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union in the Brexit
referendum. In the Mainland of China, the economy has been able to maintain
a relatively high growth rate, yet the expansion is slowing down. Nevertheless,
the Belt and Road initiative has brought strategic opportunities to economic
development. Amid this complexity in the external environment, Hong Kong as
an open economy experienced modest growth momentum but would continue
to benefit from the Mainland’s economic growth.

The banking industry in Hong Kong is facing challenges amid uneven and
uncertain global economic performance. Weak loan demand and investment
sentiment, together with keen market competition and the persistently low
interest environment posed considerable challenges to bank’s profitability.
However, Hong Kong as an international financial centre provided support to a
relatively stable banking environment.

In view of uncertainties in the operating environment and more stringent
regulatory requirement, the Group aims to pursuit continued business growth
and maintain solid financial strength at the same time in order to better
withstand market uncertainties. Moreover, the Group has stepped up to
allocate more resources to enhance the quality of management team, the
efficiency of internal control mechanisms as well as risk management
measures in order to maintain a sustainable growth.

In 2016, the Group carefully implemented its plans of riding on market trends
and fully leveraging its own competitive advantages, remained to be
customer-centric and continued to take proactive yet prudent risk-based
business strategies in order to maintain the momentum of growth. In response
to market changes and customer needs, the Group continued to enrich the
service model for its customers. In the Personal Banking business sector, the
guality of its service team consistently improved and the facilities at the
branches were also upgraded. Besides, the Group constantly strengthened its
wealth management services by offering comprehensive financial products
such as deposits, insurance, investment plans and personal loans to better
meet the different needs of its customers in this low interest rate environment.
For the Corporate Banking business, the Group continued to broaden its
offerings in cross-border corporate business services in order to provide a total
solution to its corporate customers. Riding on the branches set up in Fujian,
the Group provided its customer with full range of cross-border and tailored
banking services for fulfilling their needs in wealth management and various
kinds of financing solutions.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 2 branches and 2 sub-branches in
Fujian, China, the Bank provides its customers with full range of cross-border
and tailored banking services between Fujian and Hong Kong for fulfilling their
needs in wealth management and various kinds of financing. The Group has
continued to carry out enhancement projects on our branches to improve our
corporate image as well as to provide better services to our customers with
enhanced facilities. This is also to represent our ongoing pursuit of decent,
flexible, customised and professional services for our customers.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2016, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$651,859,000, increased by 13.78% from last year. This is mainly due to
decrease in impairment allowances as well as increase in gain from disposal of
available-for-sale securities. The return on average shareholders’ equity and
the return on average total assets were 9.78% and 1.18% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$839,081,000, decreased by 1.00%. It
was mainly due to the drop in net interest margin by 6 basis points to 1.57%
compared with 2015. Due to decrease of commission income from securities
brokerage services, net fee and commission income dropped by 10.78% to
HK$309,556,000. Operating expenses increased by 3.46% to
HK$458,456,000, while the cost to income ratio also increased by 0.15
percentage point to 35.11%.

In 2016, net charge of loan impairment allowances was HK$63,809,000,
significantly decreased by HK$135,585,000 as compared with last year, mainly
caused by the significant downgrade of a few customer advances in 2015. The
classified or impaired loan ratio also decreased by 0.03 percentage points to
0.63% compared with the end of 2015.

As of 31 December 2016, the total consolidated assets of the group increased
by 0.87% to HK$54,108,532,000 compared with the end of 2015. Advances to
customers increased by 11.94% to HK$30,768,144,000. Customer deposits
also increased by 1.51% to HK$45,437,620,000.

Prospect

Going into 2017, the global economy will remain highly uncertain. The overall
operating environment for banks in Hong Kong looks mixed as both
opportunities and challenges coexist. The Central Government’s strategic
initiative of “One Belt, One Road” will continue to deepen and expand the
cooperation between the Mainland of China and its neighbouring countries.
Moreover, the accelerated pace of RMB internationalisation and the economic
and financial reform in the Mainland of China will provide banks with more
business opportunities.

The Group will continue to pursue a prudent but growth strategy by maintaining
a sustainable balance between risk control and business growth. The Group
will strive to maintain growth, in conjunction with optimising resources
allocation, sound corporate governance and risk management. In terms of
business development, the Group will continuously enhance the customer
experience and the professionalism of the service teams, broaden its products
and services offerings, enhance its service network in terms of coverage points
and strengthen its electronic banking channels in response to the market
development and customer needs.

The Bank enters its 70" year of operation in 2017. In celebrating this
remarkable milestone, the Bank will organise a bundle of activities to promote
its origin as well as its pursuit of providing flexible, tailor-made and professional
banking and financial services to customers. Moreover, in order to pass on our
founder Mr Chen Jiageng’s corporate value in nurturing the next generation
and contributing to the community, the Bank will continue to fulfil its
commitment to corporate social responsibilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management

Overview

The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of any
organisation. In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of
importance to risk management and emphasises that a balance must be struck
between risk control and business development. The principal types of risk
inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder
value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits. The Group has a
defined risk appetite statement approved by the Board, which is an expression of
the types and level of risk that the Group is willing to take in a controllable way in
order to achieve its business goals and to meet the expectations of its
stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management governance structure,
please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book
and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the
Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to the
Financial Statements.

Market risk management

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. For details of the Group’s Market Risk
Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
Management Committee (“RC”) and senior management on a periodic basis. The
Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation
approach and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the
Group over a one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the
VAR limit of the Group.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VAR model results.
The back-testing compares the calculated VAR figure of market risk positions of
each business day with the actual and hypothetical revenues arising from those
positions on the next business day. Generally speaking, the number of
back-testing exceptions in a rolling 12-month period will not exceed four times,
given a 99% confidence level. The graph below shows the back-testing result of
the VAR against actual revenues of the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)
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There were 2 actual losses exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2016 as shown in
the back-testing results.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising
from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and
liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural.
The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions are repricing risk,
basis risk, yield curve risk and option risk. For details of the Group’s Interest Rate
Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or
pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains
sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of
cash to meet liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios;
and to survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios without
requesting the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort. For details of the Group’s
Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
process, people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in
every aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to
-day operational activities.

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational
risk management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence
are the first parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out
the duties and functions of self risk control in the process of business operation
through self-assessment and self enhancement. The Risk Management
Department (“‘RMD”) together with certain specialist functional units in relation
to operational risk management within the Group are the second line of
defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring the operational
risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance.
RMD, being independent from the business units, is responsible for assisting
the Management in managing the Group’s operational risk, including the
establishment and review of the operational risk management policy and
framework, designing the operational risk management tools and reporting
mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall operational risk position
to the Management and RC. Specialist functional units are required to carry
out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some
specific aspects of operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking
charge of operational risk management in their own units, these units are also
required to provide other units with professional advice/training in respect of
certain operational risk categories and to lead the group-wide operational risk
management. Audit Division is the third line of defence which provides
independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the operational
risk management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the
operational risk management activities of various departments or functional
units within the Group regarding their compliance and effectiveness and to put
forward recommendations for remedial actions.

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires
the establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities.
The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of
duties and authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk
management tools or methodologies such as key risk indicators,
self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and
products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable
operational risks. Business continuity plans are established to support
business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate
backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the
customer base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk
is inherent in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and
covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed
its Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent
reputation risk proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since
reputation risk is often caused by various types of operational and strategic
issues that negatively impact the trust and perception of the Group, all
operational and key risks identified are assessed through the established Key
Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to
evaluate the severity of their impact on the Group, including the damage to
reputation.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This
continuous monitoring enables the Group to effectively manage, control and
mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident. The Group also adopts
robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders informed at all times,
which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or
financial conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or
regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may
suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the Compliance and
Operational Risk Division (“C&ORD”) under RMD while the Head of RMD
reports to the Deputy General Manager. C&ORD is responsible for legal risk
management of the Group with advisory services rendered by the Legal and
Regulatory Division of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (hereinafter referred
as to “BOCHK?”). As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the
policy for the management of legal and compliance risk is approved by the RC
as delegated by the Board.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor business decisions, improper implementation of
strategies and inadequacies in the response to the changing market condition.
The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk management policy. Key
strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

B W AT (8
RiEE (8
BEAEH

RIRITEAEHAY T3 H A R A RTT
R SR I E A TE R K [FI Rt
F AR IOl - HE A EHZE B G ENE
S AR TR A G M AE AR R TR R DR
R~ (R A T e P B At -

BIeeEREEBRTM "HEFERRF
WEYEDR  AFITER AN B A TS e et i
WAFFIEHER - e E T SRS
51 NESE AT R RS P R LSS ESE
—SUE T AREWME ST M E VR KRR
RAVESNE A (e 3E A T i (KL T
—REALEE R B RE AR R (RAE &
AEESR - [ - AFRATAL AT ALY B A R
TE T HE(FEM DRSS R R R MR &
REVERCER -

Ligap:lE=y

A S B DLBR 7 M st i B % 2R L e 1 2 A
F - BB R R E M T - RS
B T 3 B T A TR 2 v 8 U 2 2 Al i
AL E BRI R T b 2 BE A 0 - A5
B P 5 e B B (i 4% B SR B B BUR T

FEEJTE ) MR R - E TR TR -
HEAMEHZEERERRERZE S &M
AERY E R R R - SR A& R TR
7 s g e E R g R AR EEE R
Piizee Sl BRI R

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Capital management

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCO") periodically reviews the Bank’s capital structure and adjusts the
capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA's requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy
Manual “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank adopts the internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on
the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra
capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately
captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios
have also been established which enable the flexibility for future business
growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress
testing. Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures
under stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Enhancing customer experience

The Bank has established “Customer Service Ambassador” in all local
branches, in which 10 of the branches have established “Fujianese
Ambassador”, with an aim to provide professional, excellent and distinctive
services to our customers.

In order to strengthen the corporate image of being customer-orientated, the
Bank strives to enhance the service capabilities for our corporate customers.
The Tsuen Wan Commercial Service, which serves as an extension of the
Tsuen Wan Branch, was established in the 4™ quarter of 2016. It is the first
strategic pilot point of the Bank’s full functional network service model with the
aim to further exploit SMEs and corporate businesses as well as to enhance
customer experience in the area.

The Bank has made continuous effort to improve branch environment and
service facilities. The recently renovated Tokwawan Branch now has a
distinctively designed tearoom to serve our customers in a relaxing
atmosphere. The Bank has also commenced the renovations for its Central
headquarter and other major branches such as Belvedere Garden Branch,
aiming to improve the Bank’s corporate image. Apart from Kwun Tong and
Tuen Mun Branches in which already have installed barrier-free facilities, the
Bank has further extended the barrier-free facilities at those renovated
branches in recent years for the convenience of disabled customers so that
they can experience our caring, flexible and professional services.

During the year, the Bank actively enhances the electronic channels like “Chiyu
Wechat official account”, “Chiyu Mobile Banking App” and “CYB Mortgage
App”. These electronic services have not only delivered the Bank’s latest
business information and promotional offers to the customers, but also
enhanced their customer service experience.

Advocating environmental awareness

To promote environmental awareness and reduce paper consumption, the
Bank constantly enhances its e-banking services and platforms and actively
encourages existing customers to opt for Electronic Bill Presentment and
Payment Services in order to experience convenient, efficient and green
banking services. During the year, the Bank continues to promote e-Cheque
service to its personal and corporate customers as well as various associations
and organisations. By offering the e-Cheque service platform, customers can
enjoy secured, environmental friendly, fast and convenient payment services to
manage their finance flexibly.

The Bank has also participated in the “Charter on External Lighting” organised
by The Environment Bureau and promised to switch off outdoor lighting
installations at night to promote environmental conservation by minimising light
nuisance and energy wastage.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Contributing to society

Organised volunteer activities actively to show our social care and fulfil
our social responsibility

The Bank’s volunteer team actively involved in various volunteer activities,
including “ATM Education Talks for Elderly 2016”, “I am a Banker Workshops”
and “Financial Education Workshops for Youth” organised by The Hong Kong
Association of Banks in 2016. Every year, our staff join hands with their family
members and friends to participate in the “Hong Kong & Kowloon Walk”
organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong as well as the “Respecting
and Caring for the Elderly in Southern District” organised by Aberdeen
Kai-fong Welfare Association.

During the year, a total of 64 volunteer team members and contributed 231
hours of community services, from which represented the Bank’s commitment
and support to care for the community we serve and our social responsibility.

Donated computer devices to non-profit organisations

In 2016, the Bank donated 250 refurbished Desktops, Printers and LCD
Monitors to "Caritas Computer Refurbish Project"”, giving the disadvantaged
access to electronic devices and contributing to environmental protection.

Benefiting Education

The Bank continues to distribute dividends to Jimei Schools for years in order
to support the education development in Jimei via the “Jiyou Chenjiageng
Education Development Foundation”. With an aim to recognise the
achievements of teachers and students with outstanding performance and
assist those students with financial needs, the Scholarships & Bursaries
Presentation Ceremony of “Jiyou Chenjiageng Education Development
Foundation” was held in Jimei University in October 2016. The ceremony this
year awarded a total of 450 teachers and students from Jimei schools.

Caring for employees

Organised recreational activities, increase employee’s centripetal force
and sense of belonging to the Bank

People are at the heart of our sustainable development. In order to advocate
work-life balance and strengthen the bonding among all levels of staff, the
Bank organised a variety of recreational activities during the year, such as
“Staff and Family Bowling Day”, “Learning Fujianese Advanced Class”,
“Narcissus Planting Interest Class”, “Pressed Flower Phone Case Workshop”
and “Disneyland Fun Day”, etc. for our staff and their families to participate.
These activities not only enriched our staff’s life after work, they also reflected
the corporate culture of the Bank for being people-oriented and caring for the
employees. Furthermore, the Bank organise annual award presentation
ceremony to accredit the teams and staff who have extremely well
performance in the past year to motivate and retain outstanding employees.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Caring for employees (continued)

The Bank enthusiastically encourages our staff to participate in a wide range of
sport competitions. In 2016, our team won the 2nd runner-up for the 7-person
soccer competition of “Bank of East Asia Cup” and have excellent performance
in the Bowling and Basketball competition of “Shanghai Challenge Cup”
organised by The Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, as well as various
badminton competitions organised by the Chinese Banks’ Association Limited
etc. Moreover, during the year our staff also participated in the “Fujian Banking
Badminton and Basketball Competition” organised by Fukien Athletic Club.
These events not only helped to strengthen the business relationship between
the Bank and the Fujian associations, but also motivated the staff to showcase
their team spirit and strive for excellence.

Enhanced the team by offering personalised training

To align our staff development plan with the Bank’s business strategies, the
Bank actively promotes continuous learning and provides multi-faceted and
tailored training programmes for our employees, such as the “Elite Training” for
Management Trainee Programme participants and the “Elite Fujian
Entrepreneurs Seminar’. Among these programmes was the “HK and Fujian
Exchange Programme” which are organised twice a year. This offers
outstanding staff to attend exchange programmes with local staff of Parent
Bank and the Bank’s branches in the Mainland.

Awards and recognition

In 2016, the Bank continued to be a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service’s “Caring Company Scheme” and was awarded the
certificate and logo in recognition of our continuing support to social care and
commitment to employees over the past years.

12
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Report of the Directors

The Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are pleased
to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 37 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.
The above section forms part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 27.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year 2016.

Shares Issued

No share was issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the shares
of the Bank are set out in Note 31 to the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:

Yue Yi #

Ng Leung Sing #

Fu Kim (appointed on 24 February 2016)

Chan Yiu Fai

Chen Zhong Xin #

Cheung Wai Hing *

Huang Ling #

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *

Liu Xin Qun # (resigned on 3 May 2016)

Tan Wan Chye #

To Chi Wing # (resigned on 24 February 2016)

Tse Siu Ling # (re-designated from Executive
Director to Non-executive Director
and resigned as Vice Chairman on
24 February 2016)

Woo Chia Wei *

Yu Kwok Chun *

Chairman
Vice Chairman

Directors

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Articles 99 and 100 of the Bank’s Articles of
Assaciation, two of the Directors who have been longest in office shall
retire from office at the annual general meeting held each year, but
shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr Yu Kwok Chun and
Mr Cheng Wai Hing shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Save for Ms Tse Siu Ling**, Mr Fu Kim and Mr Chan Yiu Fai being also
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Bank, other directors of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to date of this report
are:

Wong Siu Man
Yip Man Kai

** Resigned

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other
body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the
Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2016 have been audited by Ernst
& Young who will retire as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of its
current term of office at the close of the annual general meeting of the
Bank held in 2017.

The Board resolved to propose PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Bank to fill the vacancy following the retirement of Ernst
& Young and to hold office until the next annual general meeting of the
Bank, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Bank at the
annual general meeting held in 2017.

On behalf of the Board

Yue Yi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises twelve Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, two are Executive Directors, remaining ten are
Non-executive Directors. Of the ten Non-executive Directors, four are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and five board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 95%. The
Board authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by
the Board. The Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group and reports to the Board. The Chief Executive is responsible for
providing leadership for the whole Management and implementing important
policies and development strategies as adopted by the Board. In order to
focus on strategic and material issues that have significant impact on the
Group’s operation, financial performance, risk management and long-term
development, four committees have been established under the Board to
oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given
below:

Executive Committee (“EC”)

The EC has been delegated with authorities from the Board to handle matters

which require the Board’s review, but arise during the adjournment of the

Board. Its responsibilities include:

+ approving policies, implementation plans and management measures to
effect the group-wide development strategies and business plans approved
by the Board;

+ reviewing the implementation progress of strategies and business plans;

+ recommending strategic proposals to the Board for its consideration and
approval; and

« approving the Group’s rules and regulations according to the policies
imposed by the supervisory authorities and the holding companies.

The members of EC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Fu Kim (Chairman) (appointed on 24 February 2016)

Mr Chan Yiu Fai
Mr To Chi Wing (resigned on 24 February 2016)
Ms Tse Siu Ling (re-designated from Chairman to member on

24 February 2016)

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Four EC meetings were held in the year
with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the
following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
Head of Audit Division;

- appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

+ periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

+ Corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr Cheung Wai Hing

Mr Tan Wan Chye

Mr Woo Chia Wei

Mr Yu Kwok Chun

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Lee Hoi
Yin, Stephen, Mr Cheung Wai Hing, Mr Woo Chia Wei and Mr Yu Kwok Chun
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Four AC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 95%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk
management of the Group in, among others, the following areas:

- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group
and determination of the Group’s risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by
various business units of the Group;

- review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management policies, system and internal control;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management;
+ review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system and internal control;

+ review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group; and
+ review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions.

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Ng Leung Sing (Chairman) (re-designated from member to Chairman
on 3 May 2016)

Mr Liu Xin Qun (resigned on 3 May 2016)
Mr Fu Kim (appointed on 24 February 2016)
Mr To Chi Wing (resigned on 24 February 2016)

Ms Tse Siu Ling
Mr Yu Kwok Chun

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Yu Kwok Chun is an

Independent Non-executive Director. Four RC meetings were held in the year
with an attendance rate of 94%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group
in the following areas:

- human resources strategy, remuneration strategy and incentive
framework of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and
certain senior executives as designated by the Board from time to time;

+ structure, size and composition (including skills, experience and
knowledge) of the Board and Board Committees;

- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, senior
management and key personnel;

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees, and

-+ training and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman)

Mr To Chi Wing (resigned on 24 February 2016)

Ms Tse Siu Ling (appointed on 24 February 2016)

Mr Woo Chia Wei

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr
Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Woo Chia Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Two NRC meetings were held during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

+ review and amendment on the major human resources and
remuneration policies;

-+ review on the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the
year 2015 and the proposal on the salary adjustment for the year 2016 of
the Senior Management and Key Personnel;

-+ proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as delineated in
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA; and

- review on the key performance indicators of the First and Second Type
of Staff as delineated in the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System” of HKMA for the year 2016.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA's “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

+ “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the
Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or
material business lines, including Chief Executive and Deputy
General Managers.

- “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material
business lines, Head of Treasury, as well as heads of risk control
functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board of
Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from other Board
Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.)
where they consider necessary.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(1) Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the “performance-driven” corporate culture, the Group has
put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the
performance management at the levels of the Group, units and
individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down
under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby the
performance of the Senior Management and different units (including
business units, risk control units and other units) would be assessed
from the perspectives of financial, customer, building blocks/key
tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. For
individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be
tied to their job requirements through the performance management
mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their
achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance
of their units and fulfilment of risk management duties and
compliance. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account,
but the risk exposure involved during the course of work could also
be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal operation
of the Group. Core values are also assessed to facilitate the
attainment of them.

(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with
risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method for Group
Bonus Funding Mechanics” of BOCHK, the key risk modifiers of the
Bank have been incorporated into the performance management
mechanism of the BOCHK Group. Credit risk, market risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and
reputation risk form the framework of “The Risk Adjustment method
for Group Bonus Funding Mechanics” of BOCHK. The size of the
Variable Remuneration Pool of the Group is calculated according to
the risk adjusted performance results approved by the Board of
BOCHK and is subject to its discretion. This method ensures the
Group to fix the Group’s Variable Remuneration Pool after
considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk
management through the remuneration mechanism.

(3) Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration

Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles,
responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that
balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion.
Generally speaking, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the
responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable
remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and
will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the
Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals.
As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and
non-financial indicators.

21



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

AEEHE (&)
B B (80

Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. ¥ BRI E R e (8D

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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Management (continued)

According to the Group Bonus Funding Mechanics of BOCHK, the
size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Group is determined by
the Board of BOCHK on the basis of the financial performance of the
Group and the achievement of non-financial strategic business
targets under the long-term development of the BOCHK Group.
Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the
determination process. The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool is
reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board of
BOCHK can make discretionary adjustment to it if deemed
appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the BOCHK
Group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the
threshold performance level), no variable remuneration will be paid
out that year in principle, however, the Board of BOCHK reserves the
rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of
the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they
oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting
and performance management system is applied to ensure the
suitability of performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable
risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and the
individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the
individual staff.

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time

horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time
horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout,
payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred
in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The
Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral. The longer
the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the
higher the job grade or the higher amount of the variable
remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral
period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
BOCHK Group in the next 3 years to the effect that the variable
remuneration could only be vested to such extent as set for the
relevant year in that 3-year period subject to the condition that the
BOCHK Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement in
the corresponding year. In case of material revision of the original
estimates of the performance of the Group or individual units, or if a
staff is found to commit fraud, or found to be of malfeasance or in
violation of internal control policies, the unvested portion of the
deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff will be clawed
back.
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NEEHE (8) Corporate Governance (continued)
B s Rt (&) Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
4. HHBCREREER 4. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy
(1) AEENEHEIERAE SN R (1) The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review
B~ 4R SR Z R AR R i B B SR with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
SLEELEER - market conditions, organisational structure and risk management

requirements, etc.

(2) NERBARRTT CHFHIBRIEER) MHE (2) The annual review of the “Variable Pay Deferral Policy” of the Bank
Mo G IEAIMSEET - has been conducted during the year while there is no material

amendment to be made.

(3) &EEAERI TR AN AR AN R TSRS » & (3) Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
I (FEEAVERINEIESTSS]) Fresry TS of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
GAEER A B | BT ETAE | EHSE T Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
SER RS - “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.
5. YMNEEEEERT 5. External Remuneration Consultant
FoECRET BB F ) At - PREFRTBAY To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and
RSy BN E PR EEE Y 4 incentive mechanism, the parent company BOCHK Group appointed
AT A SRR R A S B e DR T Willis Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited and McLagan Partners Asia,
R s Willis Towers Watson Hong Inc. for independent consultation in areas of pay management
Kong Limited % McLagan Partners Asia, mechanism and market remuneration data of Senior Management and
INC.EETLEE HL - ABRAT S2 ART s key positions. The Bank has taken the relevant market information into
FEREE - account on the remuneration management.
6. ¥iHE 6. Disclosure on Remuneration
AEECSELEELSER (BN G E The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the
2] FE=ERER P AEETEFY “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA to
T R R AR - disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive
mechanism.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

NN IE S Ernst & Young
FHETERFEE 15 22/F CITIC Tower
HPERE 22 1# 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 27 to 178, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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EENESTR Consolidated Income Statement
NS
#4212 H 31 Hil&#E For the year ended 31 December Notes 2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FIEUWA Interest income 1,149,623 1,286,268
FESZH Interest expense (310,542) (438,688)
b= SISUPN Net interest income 6 839,081 847,580
R%E B HE WA Fee and commission income 328,682 373,770
RBE e Fee and commission expense (19,126) (26,808)
YBIRBE R ASWA Net fee and commission income 7 309,556 346,962
SRS Net trading gain 8 64,725 57,057
FUE R LA EE LET AT 2 Net loss on financial instruments designated at
ERh T H 51 fair value through profit or loss (7,190) (16,503)
HA S RE E 2 F s Net gain on other financial assets 9 84,335 15,304
Hr &Lz A Other operating income 10 15,256 16,938
EEUBRE AR RE B Net operating income before impairment
allowances 1,305,763 1,267,338
TSR TR Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (63,917) (199,675)
IBERBULA Net operating income 1,241,846 1,067,663
2 Operating expenses 12 (458,456) (443,103)
fut=gray | Operating profit 783,390 624,560
YN ERE > 5 (F518) ~ Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on
e investment properties 13 (14,100) 16,740
HEEEYEE - S RER Net loss from disposal/revaluation of
SREEIE properties, plant and equipment 14 (667) 1)
BRRRET SR Profit before taxation 768,623 641,299
I Taxation 15 (116,764) (68,385)
FERERF Profit for the year 651,859 572,914
BE Dividends 16 - 331,200
532 £ 178 H it EmAM B EHE > The notes on pages 32 to 178 are an integral part of these financial statements.
SHRkERST -
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@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Ff&E
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2016 2015
BT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 651,859 572,914
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 26 (40,931) 104,190
Deferred tax 30 7,863 (14,677)
(33,068) 89,513
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Available-for-sale securities:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities 24 (51,410) 23,759
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities reclassified to income statement 9 (84,451) (15,353)
Deferred tax 30 8,885 736
(126,976) 9,142
Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedge - 6,361
Currency translation difference (74,794) (66,359)
(201,770) (50,856)
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (234,838) 38,657
Total comprehensive income for the year 417,021 611,571
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 417,021 611,571

The notes on pages 32 to 178 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEREAMR

(b
K12 H31H As at 31 December Notes 2016 2015
BT HERTT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
&iE ASSETS
JETF B <8 B A7 TSR AT I Ho At < Cash and balances with banks and other
TRERsEER financial institutions 19 5,274,371 8,550,512
ERTT R H A Rt — =21+ = Placements with banks and other financial
{6 H NS 2 BRI institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 1,037,868 3,508,120
FUE R LA AL AR Financial assets designated at fair value
ERIERE through profit or loss 20 653,943 985,881
PR TR Derivative financial instruments 21 99,435 89,335
KR AR Advances and other accounts 22 31,137,452 27,789,301
HRE Investment in securities 24 13,387,676 10,736,574
eEYE Investment properties 25 203,860 246,860
VISE ~ 280 ReE R Properties, plant and equipment 26 1,532,373 1,533,802
IRAERR IR Deferred tax assets 30 60,452 50,625
HAth&E Other assets 27 721,102 150,484
B AENEEE Total assets 54,108,532 53,641,494
=i LIABILITIES
PRAT R EA SRS 7R R Deposits and balances from banks and
4hER other financial institutions 1,004,055 1,206,002
PR TR Derivative financial instruments 21 16,971 22,371
E X Deposits from customers 28 45,437,620 44,760,914
FAMMRTA R e Other accounts and provisions 29 557,688 963,728
JERTTEITHE & Current tax liabilities 55,879 54,239
IRIEFRIEE Deferred tax liabilities 30 159,787 174,729
B Total liabilities 47,232,000 47,181,983
Bx EQUITY
[RZN Share capital 31 300,000 300,000
etk Reserves 6,576,532 6,159,511
B Total equity 6,876,532 6,459,511
B AR Total liabilities and equity 54,108,532 53,641,494

% 32 2 178 HZ It T A H ik
RZARHESSY -

KHEEER 2017 3 H 22 Hid
Rz AR DL N AR -

The notes on pages 32 to 178 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2017 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

5 &g YUE Yi FU Kim
HH HE Director Director
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GFEPEREEIR  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B A AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
(FH
Reserves
At
FEEM  EHEATE
[EZN =47 EENEhE BB R MR R Hast
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share revaluation for-sale Regulatory Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20151 H1H At 1 January 2015 300,000 1,071,594 76,513 254,199 61,932 4,525,902 6,290,140
TR Profit for the year - - - - - 572,914 572,914
HoAth 2 mES - Other comprehensive
income:
i Premises - 89,513 - - - - 89,513
T S Available-for-sale
securities - - 9,142 - - - 9,142
SRS N T A Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedge - - - - 6,361 - 6,361
MR Currency translation
difference - - (840) - (65,519) - (66,359)
LU HEEH Total comprehensive
income - 89,513 8,302 - (59,158) 572,914 611,571
WS ETEA Transfer to retained
earnings - - - (30,940) - 30,940 -
tdsy Dividend - - - - - _ (442,200) _ (442,200
2015412 A 31 H At 31 December 2015 300,000 1,161,107 84,815 223,259 2,774 4,687,556 6,459,511
20161 H1H At 1 January 2016 300,000 1,161,107 84,815 223,259 2,774 4,687,556 6,459,511
iyl Profit for the year - - - - - 651,859 651,859
Hofth 4R Other comprehensive
income:
FBIE Premises - (33,068) - - - - (33,068)
A S % Available-for-sale
securities - - (126,976) - - - (126,976)
B Currency translation
difference - - (1,314) - (73,480) - (74,794)
Ealen kO Total comprehensive
income - (33,068) (128,290) - (73,480) 651,859 417,021
L ST R Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 6,764 - (6,764) -
23S Dividend - - - - - - R
2016 4212 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 300,000 1,128,039 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,332,651 6,876,532

* It iba st AEREE 39 JREI R * In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
FRHURE RN S Rk other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (‘HKAS”)
HE s RERAEREEEER 39
T AR (BREAAEA
FAA FT TR ) o

%32 £ 178 H 2 IffsF /@Al #% The notes on pages 32 to 178 are an integral part of these financial statements.
FZ AR -
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CETHESRER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FFEE
#2 12 H 31 HIkEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2016 2015
BRI AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
KLEEBEIRERE Cash flows from operating activities
FRMRTE&ER e ORH) Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before
FA taxation 32(a) (3,887,266) 2,845,730
SEATEAEFISR Hong Kong profits tax paid (105,877) (99,960)
SZABIMNFIEHR Overseas profits tax paid (20,346) (32,888)
LeEEFHE (RB) A Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
REE activities (4,013,489) 2,712,882
REREBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
W AP ~ 230 Ressfh Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment 26 (40,391) (38,701)
HEYZE - 850 R fEFrEEIE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 952 -
B SRR Net cash outflow from investing activities (39,439) (38,701)
REEBZHERE Cash flows from financing activities
TSR TR R Dividends paid to the equity holders of the
Bank - (442,200)
REEB RS H$5E Net cash outflow from financing activities - (442,200)
e REERSEE (&) /i1 (Decrease)lincrease in cash and cash
equivalents (4,052,928) 2,231,981
N1 B 1 HZ2RS EEERSTEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 8,798,277 6,809,211
PERESEIHING R EEHSIEEM  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
77 cash equivalents (44,264) (242,915)
12 B 31 HZH& REFEHSIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 32(b) 4,701,085 8,798,277

5 32 F£ 178 H @AM 7%z The notes on pages 32 to 178 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ZHHRRE ST o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services.

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a
collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at
fair value, investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises
which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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BRI (8D

2. TEEETBOR (#)

21 EREE (J)

(a) B 20164 11 1 NGBS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective

SERE RGeS BRI R EET for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2016
RAEEREE
R BET s o ar il P g AR
Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after  the Group
EEGETAERIE 1R WEERIE £ 201641 A1 H 2
(&7
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Yes
EEGETERE 165 R E G BTSN . n AT 201641 H1H s
AEANSE38GE (&KEET)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016 No
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation
EEGTEREI6 R E G B AENEY) 20161 H1H s
RAIFEALTE (KT
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
(Amendments)
EAGTHEAIE275% (2011) I B R N LA 20161 H1H =
(&&f&:T)
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment)  Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016 Yes
EAGTHEAE2855(2011) - & REER  &rafiikEIMNEERIER] 20161 H1H 7
A R R I EE 105 K & AR A
BRI 128E (KYEET)
HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 Investment entities: Applying the Consolidation 1 January 2016 No
and HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Exception
BN S AR 1155 Wil e B i G TR 201641 H1H S
(#&1E5T)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 1 January 2016 No
Operations
FBY SRR 1455 EEEBEIRE 201641 H1H S
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2016 (continued)

+ HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Disclosure Initiative”. The amendments to HKAS 1

are designed to further encourage companies to apply professional
judgement in determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments make clear that materiality
applies to the whole of financial statements and that the inclusion of
immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining where and in what order information
is presented in the financial disclosures. The adoption of this amendment
does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

+ HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements”. The amendment restores the option to allow an entity to apply
the equity method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements. Entities electing
to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements shall
have to apply the same accounting for each category of investments so
elected and are required to apply this change retrospectively. The adoption
of this amendment does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

« “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs

which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises
amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition
or measurement purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments
related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The adoption of these
improvements does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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(b) TAEAME R A B R A A
SEER 2016 FEEFRMGZ AR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016

&7
PR
#8257 RE g gl kel ZEEEHR
Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after the Group
EAGTREAE TR (&) B - PR e £ 20174 1H1H i
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 No
FEEPRAEEL29E (&3] Frfsaft © WERd AR E B RS tR Y R AR T A 2017 1H1H i
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax 1 January 2017 No
Assets for Unrealised Losses
EEGETAERISE2857(2011) &2 EEBHENGEMCEZMIEETLER  FE E
EIBY B RIS 1055 EA
(#&fE237)
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined No
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
FIB B A5 255 W EEREGA T - B BRSNS 201841 H1H S
(#&fE237)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-Based Payment: Classification and 1 January 2018 No
Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions
Eups s atle el e THE 2018 £ 1 H1H =
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
EB S AR5 1557 TR P A ERA 201841 H1H =
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes
B S 5165k HHE 20191 H1H =
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is as follows:

« HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” completes the International Accounting Standards Board’s
comprehensive response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent
standard of IFRS 9 under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification
and measurement, a single, forward-looking “expected loss” impairment
model and a tighter linkage of risk management to hedge accounting. The
changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are highlighted as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost,
(2) measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income (all fair value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation
and impairment will be recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3)
measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss. Classification is
to be made on transition, and subsequently on initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instruments.

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if
it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is
to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s
contractual cash flows characteristics represent only unleveraged
payments of principal and interest. A debt instrument is subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held in
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the instrument
fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other debt instruments
are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with
limited circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair
value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an
irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to recognise
unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses in other
comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to the income statement even upon disposal. Dividend
income is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive
payment is established.

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification
and measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically
carried forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in
other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or
loss is included in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is
presented in the income statement. The determination of whether there
will be a mismatch will need to be made at initial recognition of individual
liabilities and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to the income
statement but may be transferred within equity. This removes the volatility
in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk of liabilities
elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused by
the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no
longer be recognised in profit or loss.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2016 (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will
require more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it
requires entities to account for 12 months expected credit losses from
inception when financial instruments are first recognised and to recognise
full lifetime expected credit losses on a more timely basis when there have
been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The
impairment for financial instruments that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments), loan commitments and financial guarantees will be governed
by this standard.

Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the
accounting treatments with risk management activities and enable entities
to better reflect these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the
requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk
management strategies may be eligible for hedge accounting. It also
relaxes the rules on using non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments and allows greater flexibility on hedged items. Users of the
financial statements will be provided with more relevant information about
risk management and the effect of hedge accounting on the financial
statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is permitted. Only
the part related to own credit risk can be elected to be early applied in
isolation. The Group has joined BOCHK’s groupwide project team to assess
the impact of HKFRS 9, formulate the work plan and implement the standard.
Significant works has been done on analysing our financial instruments,
building models and designing new workflows. Due to the complication of the
project, no quantitative information of the potential effect is concluded yet.
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» HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a

single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising
from contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core
principle that revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to
be entitled when control of promised good or service transfers to customers.
It is also applicable to the recognition and measurement of gains or losses
on the sale of some non-financial assets such as properties or equipment
that are not an output of ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of
disclosure requirements about revenue from customer contracts. The new
standard will replace the separate models for goods, services and
construction contracts stipulated in different standards under the current
HKFRS. The Group is considering the financial impact of the standard.

+ HKFRS 16, “Leases”. HKFRS 16 supersedes the existing standard and

interpretations related to leases. It applies a single control model to identify
leases and distinguish between leases and service contracts. Significant
changes to lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction between
operating and finance leases removed and the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities recognised except under short term and low value leases.
There are no significant changes to the lessor accounting requirements.
The standard is applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted for
entities that have also adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. The Group is considering the financial impact of the standard
and the timing of its application.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee). When the Bank has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is the fair values at the acquisition date of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred (including contingent
consideration arrangement) and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed in the income statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If after
assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a bargain purchase gain.
Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

0}

(ii)

Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
fair value at the acquisition date and considered as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger
accounting method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting
is a way to combine companies under common control as though the
business of the acquiree had always been carried out by the acquirer.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements represent the
consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
financial position of the Group as if any such combination had occurred
from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under
common control (i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of
combination is required). The difference between the consideration and
carrying amount at the time of combination is recognised in equity. The
effects of all transactions between the Group and the acquiree, whether
occurring before or after the combination, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. Comparative
amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the
end of the previous reporting period. The transaction costs for the
combination will be expensed in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)
(i) Business combinations under common control (continued)

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating
decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the
performance of operating segments. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit
or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair
value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the
carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a

functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong

Kong dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

* income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation
reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.
When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all
financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes fees,
premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between parties to
the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and costs which
represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the
written down value using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent
unwinding of the discount allowance is recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period
when the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset
management fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been
completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or
has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other
participants.
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The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale financial assets. The
Management determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying
amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the
criteria set out below, and is so designated by the Management:

+ eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that
basis to the key management; or

» relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those
financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs
taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
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Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
(excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading gain/loss
or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part of
interest income.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
including placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, investment debt securities without an active market and
loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for
impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active
markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s Management has both the positive intention and the ability
to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i)
other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the
Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or regulatory
requirement or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses.
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Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either
designated as such or are not classified in any of the other categories.
They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium
and discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in other comprehensive income is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
financial asset using the effective interest method. If the financial asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount recorded in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities
is dealt with in Note 2.4.

29 &FEaE 2.9 Financial liabilities
AEEE N BRI HEREE 5 The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories:
MEEE - FE R VAT EE(LET AR trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
ZBREME - R EAMEE - A loss, deposits and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at
Rl BB A 5 8% R I 5 HL 43 J300 DA inception and recognised initially at fair value.
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or
loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so
designated include certain certificates of deposit in issue and certain
deposits received from customers that are embedded with
derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the
following criteria:

« eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on
that basis to the key management; or

« relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from
those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading
liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss, are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period using the effective interest
method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the
guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating
to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are recognised on the
trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the assets.
Loans and receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the
transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if
control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities and financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not
trading liabilities are recognised when money is received from customers,
other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial
liabilities are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying amount of a
liability and the consideration paid is included in net trading gain/loss.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase
at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase
agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks,
placements from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at
the actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not
derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due
from banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions, as
appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty.
Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous

market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.
Precious metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are

included in net trading gain/loss.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence

B (THEAES, ) o HEELES of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
] SEAG R IH B Rl Bk AH e initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
B ERTHET AR SR A R 2 > JI events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the
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financial asset or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the
following probable loss events:

() E(7 ANBURAE A S B B B (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
£

(i) =&Y PlaaEH s R R SR S (i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
B principal payment;

(iii) PR FE B N 2 S TE PR B AL B (iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
KO EOARIFR - ARG TSR relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
ANAE— N TGN T35 & lender would not otherwise consider;

B

(iv) 53R BT B b s ol 1T A (iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
TEEH other financial reorganisation;

(v) FAFBRESHRFEZemMEE S (v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
PR T M R B A A AR investment grade level for that financial asset because of financial
WESHFICLUT ;5 5 difficulties; or

(vi) IIEZEBNERE N E—SMEE (vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
HEMEL ZRKRERES R = estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the
BE G TERE A EE 2T initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
[ BEARATRE T R R REBARE B be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
HENZEFeREE - BRE including:

& -

o RS T HEE A EEIRINE « adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group;
A B or

o B U AT T SO B * national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
= BRI E A HRGTEIRIL © the assets in the group.

(1) DABEREASTENEE (1) Assets carried at amortised cost
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The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all other
financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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214 SREERE (8
(1) DA BRNEE (&)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
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When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to
the extent of its decrease is reversed through the income statement.
With respect to equity instruments, further fair value changes are
recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses
are not reversed through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a
subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned
in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity
in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the
Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased out
within Group companies are classified as investment properties in
individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related

transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.
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2.16 Investment properties (continued)
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Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the
intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises,
by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the
premises revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.
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2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
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All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the
cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

* Properties
* Plant and equipment

Over the life of government land leases
3to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication
that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases

(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as expense in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance leases
as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e. transaction
price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the
land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment
properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit.

57



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

BRI (8D

2. TEEETBOR (#)

2.20 %

EAEEN TS 2 B MAKE
EEMEEEHEE M BA R MR
HERATRENEREENR A
TR R B A T SR R
ZHEIUT - RS A R RS -

2.21 TR

(1) BHEFIFA

GBS S TSR R ORE T 28
Mt ERpHOR R TEIE T
R SEE R SIS - TR
BIRETEIT  SEEE R 5 2 fay
REAAH & Fothst R - 1558
Tt # T2 F AR RE
BIETE - BOREFET A REA
EEERILER S A Z 5K &
TREEAEIF AR R SHL - R E 2
B A HIE S SR AU o ATR
SR et #] > INi#o2ds
ARG HR > B AR (FATR
HHATHE & B SRR R (st
H SR RTOTIRHRE S -

BIRETH BEBAREE ZTES
BRI E A IRE -

(2) BtEEE

1R B = 7 SRR IR B B e B
FitfERy - AEEEHRERGES
SHERHRERE > BHMRERZE
FER B AT R R S Z R A E L
[EENE

a9 18 e S e 2 SEFE IR R
Hh > HMAEERESR 2T R -
iR AN EEH B 2 FEAR
RERBEHIZ S GRS - e
AT FHERERE HEECH © BRARZIELZ R
SR ERNNE Y s Al )
<z DA (0 o] SR 68 P 22 7T R R
& -

() BEEEtE

R BRI IREs T S B E A
FREMEHEE I BA BT -
HEZ EFRRE T SEM I (55
SRR R D % T 2 8% A DL
AEYIE - ddEeat#l 2 & fHEE
BHA > HFEEn 12 #EAERA 1
B GLULHRE -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave
expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves,
they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if
the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including available-for-sale securities and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale securities and revaluation of premises which are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive
income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together
with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the balance
sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at the lower of
their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confimed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over the Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial
reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; (iii)
is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting group;
(iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents; (v) is subject
to common control with the Group; and (vi) is an entity in which a person
identified in (iv) controls. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. EREsTBCRIEZBEA®:HMEET R 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying

accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential
estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key
assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is
practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results may require material
adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1

3.2

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and
advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. The Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2016 are
shown in Note 22.

Impairment of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment
portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In
determining whether any of these investments is impaired, risk
characteristics and performance such as external credit rating and market
price, will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market
performance of the portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or
performance of the underlying assets, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the collateralised assets. The methodology and
assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31 December 2016 are
shown in Note 24.
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3. [ERSsTBORIF B AS st & 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)
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3.3 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

3.4

35

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models with
built-in functions available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk
management systems widely used by the industry such as option pricing
models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In
addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit
risk are not considered in the valuation models. Management judgement
and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further details will
be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2016 are shown in Note 21.

Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification requires
significant management judgement to evaluate the Group’s intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to hold these
investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in
HKAS 39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity
or due to significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as
available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be measured at
fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2016
are shown in Note 24.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk
management governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the
methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (“RC”), a standing committee established by
the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of
risks, approving Level | risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation, reviewing significant or high risk exposures or transactions and
exercising its power of veto if it considers that any transaction should not proceed.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types
of risks, and material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board of Directors. With the support from Risk Management Department
(“RMD”) and Financial Management Department (“FMD”), the Deputy General
Manager assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of risks and initiating new risk management strategies, projects and
measures that will enable the Group to better monitor and manage new risk issues
or areas that may arise from time to time from new businesses, products and
changes in the operating environment. He will also take appropriate initiatives in
response to regulatory changes. The Deputy General Manager and the Head of
RMD are also responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions
within their delegated authority. In accordance with the principle of setting the
hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the Board, Senior
Management are also responsible for approving the detailed risk management
policies of their responsible areas.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

63



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

BRI (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. GRERBREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
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Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. The department of strategic development shall ensure the plans are
aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for
risk management, legal, compliance and finance etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work
closely with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of
new products. Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on
the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk management measures.
Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating departments and approval from
designated unit heads/the Management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading
book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Head of RMD is responsible for credit risk management with
assistance from Credit Risk Management. Various units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence. The RMD, which is independent from
the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day management of credit
risks and has the primary responsibility for providing an independent due
diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit
risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting,
reviewing and updating credit risk management policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk,
and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews
on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit
and other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment
of material credit applications. Credit applications for non-retail exposures
are independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings
(in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support
credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used
to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used
for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is
required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)
Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

Credit Risk Management provides regular credit management information
reports and ad hoc reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five
categories with reference to the HKMA’s guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in
doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into
account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated
with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits
are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is
insured with the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits and securities. In
the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s

financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2015:
Nil).
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A. Credit exposures
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The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit
risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group could be required
to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the
committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as
follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”)
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event.
In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included
to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA,
collateral is passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate
the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 67. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is
analysed on pages 78 to 79. The components and nature of contingent liabilities
and commitments are disclosed in Note 33. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 36.14 % (2015: 40.95%)
is covered by collateral as at 31 December 2016.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before

summarised by product type as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

impairment allowances are

2016 2015
HEMETT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,707,429 2,661,158
- Others 3,224,061 2,775,889
Corporate
- Commercial loans 24,331,694 21,337,904
- Trade finance 504,960 711,973
30,768,144 27,486,924
Trade bills 592,098 479,031
31,360,242 27,965,955
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the
borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
and that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
advances that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from such advances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit
grade as follows:

2016
& RERE REFHRT T
Special Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,692,219 9,343 48 2,701,610
- Others 3,185,086 2,119 - 3,187,205
Corporate
- Commercial loans 24,049,785 112,396 - 24,162,181
- Trade finance 460,867 3,776 - 464,643
30,387,957 127,634 48 30,515,639
Trade bills 592,098 - - 592,098
30,980,055 127,634 48 31,107,737
2015
et EEERAE REFELLT HaEt
Special Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT BT OBRTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 2,656,521 3,687 61 2,660,269
- Others 2,741,695 13,790 - 2,755,485
Corporate
- Commercial loans 21,132,949 11,453 - 21,144,402
- Trade finance 611,276 15,138 - 626,414
27,142,441 44,068 61 27,186,570
Trade bills 479,031 - - 479,031
27,621,472 44,068 61 27,665,601

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have
been included in the above tables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2016
B A
3 EA 3{EAE 6 @3 AHA
BT AEB6MHEA FE#ALE iy QD #HEt
Overdue Overdue for Overdue
for six months for one Overdue
three orless year or less for
months or but over but over over one
less three months  six months year Total
AT BT AT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 5,819 - - - 5,819
- Others 35,613 151 - 1,092 36,856
Corporate
- Commercial loans 17,266 11,508 - 3,205 31,979
- Trade finance 762 - - - 762
59,460 11,659 - 4,297 75,416
Trade bills - - - - -
59,460 11,659 - 4,297 75,416
2015
AR AR
A 3 A 3EAMHE 6 EAHE biinf L
LN AE#E6EH Al 1AE i 1A HEEt
Overdue Overdue for Overdue
for six months for one Overdue
three orless year orless for
months or but over but over over one
less three months six months year Total
BT T BT BT BT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 889 - - - 889
- Others 19,658 - - 746 20,404
Corporate
- Commercial loans 36,828 - - 8,484 45,312
- Trade finance 31,204 31,765 - - 62,969
88,579 31,765 - 9,230 129,574
Trade bills - - - - -
88,579 31,765 - 9,230 129,574
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:
2016 2015
HEER ERETE HEEL RS TE
Market Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
AT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages - - - -
- Others - - - -
Corporate
- Commercial loans 137,534 271,527 148,190 297,123
- Trade finance 39,555 16,408 22,590 17,175
177,089 287,935 170,780 314,298
Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances 83,408 65,003
2016 2015
BT ATIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 287,935 314,298
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 144,982 157,631
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 32,107 13,149

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of

collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2016, there were no impaired trade bills (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances (continued)

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2016 2015
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers 193,093 181,118
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 0.63% 0.66%
Individually assessed impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances 83,408 65,003

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are
either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s
classification of loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
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4, &BEEEHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. ST R HAMRTE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) #HA#EIE 3EHE &% (d) Advances overdue for more than three months
AR 3 5 H 2 SRk The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as
AT follows:
2016 2015
fEESERR & P ERK
&8 SEEE L &% EEHES
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
PSR EE > A Gross advances to

customers which have
been overdue for:

- i 3 H{E R A - six months or less but
6 EH over three months 13,817 0.04% 35,236 0.13%
- i 6 {E BB - one year or less but
14 over six months - 0.00% 121,510 0.44%
- i 1A - over one year 42,470 0.14% 45,351 0.17%
AR 3 ([ H 2 5K Advances overdue for over
three months 56,287 0.18% 202,097 0.74%
Bt SR EE RS 2 Individually assessed
ek impairment allowances
made in respect of such
advances 7,643 55,325
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4, SREREE () 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. AESE R HAMEE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) #HA#EIE 3EHE &% (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
(&)
2016 2015
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt SR Current market value of collateral held
e R T E against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 92,764 373,707
FiltHEIESEE R E Covered portion of such advances to
B customers 50,680 195,351
G ERI R EE & Uncovered portion of such advances to
EEEL customers 5,607 6,746
A B ECRE ST Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
Mo THEEEAERER charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
TH N HY P A & EE A P 5 R corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FEMEF EAREFHET
HIEEHIETE -
*2016 /£ 12 H 31 H % As at 31 December 2016, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
Faifes 3 HH 2" months (2015 Nil).

g (2015 4 ¢ fE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(e) Rescheduled advances

2016 2015
(-9 =y= /e % P &R
S8 S ESth & EEOL
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT HATT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Rescheduled advances
to customers net of
amounts included in
“Advances overdue
for more than three
months” 110,107 0.36% - -

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the
inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of loans and advances.

IBEEE Db R =]
G -
TEEBEH 2 &5 Loans for use in Hong Kong
T PERisE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Vg - Property development
- VEERGE - Property investment
- PR - Financial concerns
- HeEERA - Stockbrokers
- fitEE R - Wholesale and retail
trade
- B - Manufacturing
- MRS - Transport and transport
equipment
- R EED - Recreational activities
- EifRHs - Information technology
- HAt - Others
{EA Individuals
- EEEEAHEE TS - Loans for the purchase of
MRS EEST flats in Home
BIRGHH BB Oumership Scheme,
i, rivate Sector
LA Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme
- MEEHM e - Loans for purchase of
K other residential
properties
- HAth - Others
TEEB{IE 2 SR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong
H oA Trade finance
AEEHELYME Z 653K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong
BB Gross advances to

customers

2016
TR ERE A

BREE Esyapa g | EFlEHEZ  HEFHMEZ
B R ZBEsth BORE b i} BEREE PERIES
Gross % covered by Individually  Collectively
advances collateral  Classified assessed assessed
to or other or impairment  impairment
customers security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
AT EHTT AT BT A¥TT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3,421,202 11.62% - - - 21,512
3,712,582 98.80% 11,508 11,961 - 15,340
944,258 7.21% - - - 5,901
504,555 12.74% - - - 3,311
1,554,323 79.11% - 16,719 - 6,854
1,441,421 40.73% - 2,013 - 7,786
1,524,273 42.27% - - - 9,273
19,160 100.00% - - - 82
599,446 1.55% - - - 3,928
4,289,437 70.46% - 130 - 20,744
30,957 100.00% 48 - - 32
2,657,501 99.54% - 5,819 - 2,153
2,149,012 96.63% 151 30,815 - 1,841
22,848,127 63.30% 11,707 67,457 - 98,757
504,960 61.31% 39,555 34,949 28,106 2,493
7,415,057 41.32% 141,831 34,624 55,302 38,132
30,768,144 57.97% 193,093 137,030 83,408 139,382
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TN ERERT
B EHEEE
HEFZE5K

- [EEH e
Bk

- Ffth

TEB AR SR

oy
'
b

ERE
TEBEABSNER 2 85K

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and

financial

- Property development

- Property investment

- Financial concerns

- Stockbrokers

- Wholesale and retail
trade

- Manufacturing

- Transport and transport
equipment

- Recreational activities

- Information technology

- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong
Kong

Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong
Kong

Gross advances to
customers

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2015
FEFP S At

S FrE T ERIEHE . HEHEZ
PR A=) BRE A AR ERIER S
Gross % covered Individually Collectively
advances by collateral Classified assessed assessed
to or other or impairment impairment
customers security impaired Overdue  allowances allowances
ARETT AT BMETT AT BMETIT
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,092,377 11.17% - - - 17,398
3,978,181 96.12% - 2,008 - 16,159
667,745 19.04% - - - 3,549
198,980 2.59% - - - 1,156
2,345,031 81.54% 3,413 51,924 3,413 10,400
1,825,450 34.79% - 125 - 9,637
1,314,673 64.32% - - - 6,961
24,204 100.00% - - - 106
3,435 100.00% - - - 13
3,074,425 68.90% 58 3,044 58 13,111
40,081 100.00% 61 - - 44
2,599,020 99.69% - 889 - 2,130
1,610,520 96.60% - 1,809 - 1,346
20,774,122 67.52% 3,532 59,799 3,471 82,010
711,973 61.67% 22,590 85,559 10,059 3,343
6,000,829 57.94% 154,996 154,996 51,473 26,298
27,486,924 65.28% 181,118 300,354 65,003 111,651
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and
classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

AT

TEEABHRZ S
T PR

- VBt

- WEERA

- g

- BT

- BhE

- OB

- FrHbE)
- BRI
- Htr

fEA
- HEEEHAERE
N2 R
#H R B R
T2 85K
- [EEH e
- Hfifl

TEB AR SR
E oA

TEEAELI MR Z 550

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and

financial

- Property development

- Property investment

- Financial concerns

- Stockbrokers

- Wholesale and retail trade

- Manufacturing

- Transport and transport

equipment

- Recreational activities

- Information technology

- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home Ownership
Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

- Others
Total loans for use in Hong Kong

Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong
Kong

Gross advances to customers

2016 2015
o WEHRE o M E 7
PR AR BREEK R A BERE SR
New Classified or New Classified or
impairment impaired loans impairment impaired loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BT BT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,911 - 8,503 -
1,665 - 1,710 -
1,525 - 897 -
20 3,462 3,413 -
997 991 2,637 -
1,635 - 1,197 -
- - 65 -
2,770 - - -
5,456 59 4,592 -
7 - - -
708 469 320 263
17,694 4,981 23,334 263
33,690 14,904 109,016 110,480
20,168 2,095 80,208 15,329
71,552 21,980 212,558 126,072
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4, &BEEEHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. AESE R HAMEE (&) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(f) BEESHETE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(il) EHEERSFZE (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
R
Bl Eﬁﬁ?%?‘ iz The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
HOHR LI T T R AR I locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
R o2 FrAEit advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
L BH & JE B 1 R customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
LB P ERZER
NP AE #8225 = BT A
HAR[E] > HIE SRS
ZBYECR AN Z P e, -
AR Gross advances to customers
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HH Hong Kong 26,989,241 23,485,568
R A Mainland of China 2,427,290 3,103,891
HAth Others 1,351,613 897,465
30,768,144 27,486,924
BLE E AR R Collectively assessed impairment
EFHhZ BEEE allowances in respect of the gross
advances to customers
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
& Hong Kong 121,444 94,416
o B Pyt Mainland of China 10,343 13,157
HAth Others 7,595 4,078
139,382 111,651
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Overdue advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Individually assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
overdue advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Collectively assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
overdue advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(il) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2016 2015
BRTT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
50,432 41,458
73,398 211,876
13,200 47,020
137,030 300,354
2016 2015
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
- 13,149

18,247 51,854
10,671 -
28,918 65,003
2016 2015
ARTT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
368 99

45 297

1 273

414 669
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Individually assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Collectively assessed impairment
allowances in respect of the
classified or impaired advances

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2016 2015
BT AEEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
11,707 13,210
166,361 166,097
15,025 1,811
193,093 181,118
2016 2015
BT AEETTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
- 13,149

70,055 51,854
13,353 -
83,408 65,003
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
172 -

14 32

- 9

186 41
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
C. lgEr&E C. Repossessed assets
AEEE 2016 4 12 H There were no repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
31 HmRA U e E Nil). The repossessed assets represent properties in respect of which the Group has
(2015 4 : 4t ) - UYg[E| & acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
FETE AR GEE A i proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

HUfS i B B R R )
Z (AiE AR P
FEHBER R EE

TCHUS ) T AT E
TEHET ISR 7 iR

D. 1T R E M REE D. Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
HIEERR AR
TREARIT K H M The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
Rt RERY I A BB other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
ZEEERRAERGN 12 A rating agency designation.
31 HE R BPAR
Parii
2016
Aaa E A3 A3 DR YR &ust
Lower than
Aaato A3 A3 Unrated Total

ARTIT  ERTT ARTIT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

LR Central banks 323,646 - - 323,646
BRAT I HoAth < Rl Banks and other
financial institutions 5,100,781 496,937 205,409 5,803,127
5,424,427 496,937 205,409 6,126,773
2015
Aaa F A3 A3 IR SR “aEt
Lower than
Aaa to A3 A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT HAMETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Hp o EReT Central banks 479,759 - - 479,759
AT R A RS Banks and other
financial institutions 10,678,746 386,217 346,718 11,411,681
11,158,505 386,217 346,718 11,891,440
#2016 412 H 31 H-» As at 31 December 2016, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
A BEHECRE 2 $R1T placements with banks and other financial institutions (2015: Nil).
T oAt < Rl 5 B

AR (2015 4« 4E) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and

certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

Available-for-sale
securities

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss

Available-for-sale
securities

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss

2016
Aaa Aal & Aa3 A1 & A3 A3 BT LR fst
Lower
Aaa AaltoAa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BETT B¥Tr BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2,668,929 3,419,158 4,210,807 1,999,824 552,397 12,851,115
- 381,440 149,882 - - 531,322
- - 78,793 392,383 182,767 653,943
2,668,929 3,800,598 4,439,482 2,392,207 735,164 14,036,380
2015
Aaa Aal ¥ Aa3 Al £A3 A3 DT SESTAR Hagt
Lower
Aaa AaltoAa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT BT BT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,008,148 2,848,945 3,291,766 1,613,186 886,792 10,648,837
- - 337,820 607,680 40,381 985,881
2,008,148 2,848,945 3,629,586 2,220,866 927,173 11,634,718

As at 31 December 2016, there were no overdue or impaired debt securities and
certificates of deposit (2015: Nil).
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4. ERERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 oEEE 4.2 Market risk

T 355 [ e 2 4 D < i T 55 (R
(B ~ FIR ~ PR EE{EAS ~ L
) MeBEEGRITIMNE - F
R RENELFA EEIREL
i A RESE A BB ARAIES - A
B2 8 B HL 2 69 35 R R
4 B AR o T
GEREHRHR > BIREAE
I A e e S P S S T
TR - EESEE AR B R
AR EEL TR - ARUE AL
58] 23 5 o A BE EE AR Y T 55 R
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A B b B B i B A SR A
JFRE SR - R R
EEZRE - mEEEA SN
BRREEE (L - B FEHRE > 88
HIT - B EHEEARTTSE
WEENEERN - BHEEE
B BJETH BT - B
B 2R A BRI R T 255 LB tR O DA
FOEHBERAIIREE TN > I
Tt O R B AL 51 B9 77 5 e B 39
PEHIAE FHEZHI IR ACEA

A B A T 5 R e A R IR
B PG - BTE - BT
Hl S - £ bR AR
FHEBER RN EREE - 18
B R ~ BT T DL R SR
Mo EE - £ EEAIIREE
REBREE I B=(dE% > 77
HHEEEEESE - BEAM
EHZEE G R BERSEE
HAe - B EALAERIZEI T
S5 oy 15 AR R o ] 1 Bl e

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing
market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group's business, according to the
Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. FMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the
market risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group,
and ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable
levels.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, ALCO and the Head of FMD respectively.
Business units are required to conduct their business within approved market risk
indicators and limits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure® of the
Group.

i 24 24F 4R

F 127310 REHRE BERE  TEIRE
Minimum  Maximum

At 31 for for Average for

Year December the year the year the year

AETIL  BWMTIT  ARTIT AT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$°000

VAR for all market risk 2016 527 289 548 511
2015 294 171 335 250
VAR for foreign exchange risk 2016 527 289 548 511
2015 294 171 335 250
VAR for interest rate risk 2016 - - - -
2015 - - - -

Note:

1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
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4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HGEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

A BRE (8 A. VAR (continued)
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— X SR AE B B P LR

REE ) T R E SRS
PR - NIEE - e T BRI
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b -

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits
(e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool.
Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps)
are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

B. Currency risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

2016
BT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

=T Ht g BUT FEEOT 0 OARE  HMSNE  SNBLEE

New Others Total

US Japanese Pound Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Yan  Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbicurrencies currencies

HE&ZE Spot assets 11,624,795 82,460 253,338 909,535 334,789 5,158,096 409,390 18,772,403

HEAH Spot liabilities (9,390,124)  (79,976) (244,038) (883,975) (336,571) (5,078,281) (451,916) (16,464,881)

HEHIE A Forward purchases 358,917 61,004 3573 3,507 10,281 52,184 490,366

EHHE Forward sales (2,127,697)  (64,743)  (13,149)  (26,337) (3,099)  (234,887) (9,464) (2,479,376)
& (58) B4 Net long/(short)

position 465,891 (355) (276) (777) (1,374) _ (144,791) 194 318,512

EREMEAERTE Net structural position 790,791 - 790,791

2015
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

FEIT EAARR g% WIT FERETT /N E L O S e

New Others Total

us Swiss Pound Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Francs  Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

WE&ZE Spot assets 12,768,148 1,743 192,444 695,547 344,207 6,945,132 455238 21,402,459

HEaf Spot liabilities (7,518,613) (8,107)  (172,934)  (960,134)  (344,795) (7,081,555)  (490,124) (16,576,262)

EHIEA Forward purchases 393,156 42,513 1,724 381,275 1,887 21,994 218,767 1,061,316

HEHIE Forward sales (5,174,258)  (35,988)  (20,976)  (115,195) (930)  (79,651)  (184,086) (5,611,084)
£/ O #8541 Net long/(short)

position 468,433 161 258 1,493 369 (194,080) (205) 276,429

AR Net structural position 924,033 924,033
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 migRE (E 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. FIZEk& C. Interest rate risk
FlIJE 2B R - EEA Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
EARGE R S R S A g o] arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
RE B EURTT R KR EE asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
AR ERE - AEEERTF A E, mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
WK AE FEAR EAERE VR A - 451 positions are:
MERPE Y SRRt Fs
- FPREETHERE - EEMHEENE] - Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets
ﬁﬂ HECEETEASIHIR nTAESATT and liabilities that may affect net interest income;
sz BFFIEULA
- FIERECERER - REZ S EE - Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that
HEARHE > SEENWEENE the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
BT RE g (R [E —EETER within the same repricing period;
AR IR EHIhE R 4L
- WS EREhARE R ¢ F UGS ZE Al - Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an
IR TS E i LR FE I A adverse impact on net interest income or economic value; and

SR EEEEAIPZE KX

- ZBREEERE  BRNEE - Al - Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or
jZ?E%IEEW LATHANE > AR off-balance sheet items that can cause a change in the cash flows of
FHEE S S S E A EN assets and liabilities.
f%(j?ifﬁ o
A G [ R o T 4 S (D R A The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
R EE - R EHEE R management. The ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
AR (BRT EF*UYZH i B accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
R) EEAETHZEGERERE approved by the RC. FMD is responsible for interest rate risk management.
T?E@%I*UYHI’ERE’J%E W s With the cooperation of Treasury Division, FMD assists the ALCO to perform
EHE T EA T Tﬂa‘s day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not
EBENE T  WBEEAEE limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of
HZ B e hiE = E N F TRB@E methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target
IEI{’E BFE(E R R E R T balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits, and
» BT A BT R e submission of interest rate risk management reports to the senior
ﬂ]lﬁgﬁ FRAG B A A management and RC, etc.

e R e T R L R
iﬂﬁ o e EEJ\ELJJSZH
b L 2 B o R A AR R B v

Pamtooy
= <F °©
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4. ERERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. FilZEkR (&)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group set out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a basis point
(“PVBP”), net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value
sensitivity ratio (“EV”), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into
different levels, which are approved by the RC, ALCO and the Head of FMD
accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their
business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before launching
a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a
percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. FIRESE (&) C. Interest rate risk (continued)
TFEM T ALZEPD 12 The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
H 31 AV&EalmEN risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
E’J*Uﬁ)ﬁkfﬁi%?ﬁg ?EVSIU\ amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
SEAIESElE o 2
SRHEEY R EE KA

i1 MHE SLIERTER
HHEERHA (LERE R

) S8
2016
—Z ==
—EAA =@A +=EA —EHF AHEUE TR fEst
Non-
Upto1l 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
BETT BBTRT BETIT EETT BETT A%t AB%TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BHE Assets
JERAT R B RAT IR T R Cash and balances with
HAth SRR 4R banks and other financial

institutions 4,893,484 - - - - 380,887 5,274,371
TESRTT R HoAth B b B Placements with banks and
— &+ {EANFHI>Z other financial institutions

ERITERL maturing between one and
twelve months - 680,536 357,332 - - - 1,037,868
FLUE BN ES{EET A Financial assets designated
B35 SRnEE at fair value through profit
or loss 432,133 165,862 39,043 16,905 - - 653,943
e T A Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 99,435 99,435
BRI A R Advances and other accounts 26,116,549 4,166,630 119,906 733,117 614 636 31,137,452
BHREE Investment in securities
- A EE S - Available-for-sale securities 638,240 1,964,945 5,807,257 4,440,673 - 5,239 12,856,354
- FIEEFIHIHES - Held-to-maturity securities . ) B B ) . X
- B EGR - Loans and receivables 299,771 154,690 76,861 - - - 531,322
BB Investment properties 203,860 203,860
W ~ BEM R R AR Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1532373 1,532,373
HAr&EE (FFEEERIE  Other assets (including
i) deferred tax assets) 71 - - - - 781,483 781554
BEHE Total assets 32,380,248 7,132,663 6,400,399 5,190,695 614 3,003,913 54,108,532
=T Liabilities
SRIT R H A Rl > Deposits and balances from
FE R 456 banks and other financial
institutions (203,683) (89,729)  (638,280) - - (72,363) (1,004,055)
FiA4R T B Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (16,971) (16,971)
&Pk Deposits from customers (28,613,844) (7,339,020) (6,507,596) (66,708) - (2,910,452) (45,437,620)
HoAthfRrE R e (BHEERT  Other accounts and
FTE R AR TE &S ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (154,395) - - - - (618,959)  (773,354)
=it Total liabilities (28,971,922) (7,428,749)  (7,145,876) (66,708) - (3,618,745) (47,232,000)
GIESE G Interest sensitivity gap 3,408,326 (296,086)  (745,477) 5,123,987 614 (614,832) 6,876,532
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. MI=E (&) C. Interest rate risk (continued)
2015
—% =&

—{@H R =EA +fEH —ZEAF HFRE et dEst

Non-

Uptol 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total

BT BEETT AT BT BETOT BEToT BETT
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

BHE Assets
JERAT R B RATF IR T B Cash and balances with
HAh &Rt 4565 banks and other financial
institutions 8,172,567 - - - - 377,945 8,550,512

TESRT R HoAth B b b%AE Placements with banks and
— 2+ {HHAANFHIZ other financial institutions

A maturing between one and
twelve months - 1,890,221 1,617,899 - - - 3,508,120
HE R DN EE (LS A Financial assets designated
B35 RS E at fair value through profit
or loss - 257,728 77,063 651,090 - - 985,881
ITESHTHE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 89,335 89,335
B HA AR Advances and other accounts 23,081,147 4,195,455 244,871 263,560 4,268 - 27,789,301
BHEE Investment in securities
- A EE S - Available-for-sale securities 1,569,125 1,165,105 3,913,838 4,000,769 - 87,737 10,736,574
- FIEEFIH R - Held-to-maturity securities - _ B _ B } N
EYE Investment properties - - - - - 246,860 246,860
WISE - BN R Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,533,802 1,533,802
Hith&E (RFEIREFRTE  Other assets (including
&) deferred tax assets) 273 R R R R 200,836 201,109
REGH Total assets 32,823,112 7,508,509 5,853,671 4915419 4,268 2,536,515 53,641,494
== Liabilities
SRAT R E A RS Deposits and balances from
1FER R bk banks and other financial
institutions (912,130)  (215,491) - - - (78,381) (1,206,002)
LT A Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (22,371) (22,371)
&P Deposits from customers (28,155,131) (8,505,321) (4,532,143)  (447,084) - (3,121,235) (44,760,914)
HoAthfRrE R e (EHEERT  Other accounts and
FRTE R AR TE &S ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (167,953) - - - - (1,024,743) (1,192,696)
AfEEE Total liabilities (29,235,214)  (8,720,812)  (4,532,143)  (447,084) - (4,246,730) (47,181,983)
FIRERE RO Interest sensitivity gap 3,587,898 (1,212,303) 1,321,528 4,468,335 4,268 (1,710,215) 6,459,511

93



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

BRI (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. GRRREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iR (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. AEETHEBRE SRE

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

Papil

AEEE FEEEHETT ETTRA
EME I3z - Bk 22 2016 4 12
H31H  #Z&HT - ETAAR
W T R R 25 SR 4 ST
L% 100 {EEEE > HAMRZEAR
G T &R ARy
HstdE 25,500,000 ¢ (2015
£F 1 #59% 31,000,000 1)« =%
(FaE)res i Ol b | S5
FEMTE R A -

SRATARFIZR R

T EI R T SR SRR E R
TR EE AR R R
e LUT T aiER s A
H

EAEE
SR

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 20186, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of
the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$25,500,000 (2015:
HK$31,000,000) higher. The impact on reserves would be insignificant. The
sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the Group’s interest rate exposure for major currencies in its banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

12 B 31 HEpE
Impact on positions
at 31 December

ATTEE R HhER-T 1 100 £

SEITEE R HhaR-T L 100 £

A RBEEEEHRER-FAT 1% 100 28

B R A R A
7® > Eoh e (ERRR) T3
TR QAR BH B 5 LI AR BRI
L~ FIERSPATIEE) ~ Rat By
B 2 f e 7T RE BRI 4 7
JE\RATEN ~ Eh SR AR -
AR EEst 25 H Rk 7
BEIIEAEENEITEEA
ZRIGH T H Z EmmiE
Mtz LalRK P S AL
E R AR ey — o -

2016 2015
Earnings perspective AT AT
Scenarios HK$’000 HK$°000

Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
HK dollar yield curves 40,500 52,500

Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
US dollar yield curves (18,000) (26,500)

Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
Renminbi yield curves 3,000 5,000

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the lender of last resort.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on
the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of
funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the
Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different
term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets
which provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and
ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims
in case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of
funds and the use of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and
liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding
strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The
Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to
manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and
to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such
as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other complex structured
products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to
cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from
other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.

The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by RC. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to assist the ALCO to
perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.
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4. ERERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

43 FisrgEeER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A B e T T T < e S A
PRER > 5 H AR~ 512 - B
AFERIRE R SR > B E
PRI A BN EEER - BFEE
o RREHEER - DURR
PR EEEAaE - AEER
B R AT DARFA A SR B
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EFERIVAES] - AEEINETLT
TR EHER ARG EEAEE
H A R EIER R LR EH %
& SRS BRI RE
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REERESE RHEM 2 BEEE
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&% DU bR EHE KBS
B TSR - EHES
SRR IR AT 0 AREEEE
THEANERN (WEFFER) K
Foh (SR HEERE
% o RIERFEIEE - AFERREI
THEWREE - RIBALEIEE -
BREEERR N EEA BRI
{BRE% - DATEHI AR SR B R A
EIREARG - REBBE "R
FEHRER M ) 51 IR L
RS FRIAE H & H 0T HIR AR
30 HZ AR RS > L
FHE AR EERE R TR R B
FEfTRZ AR > DUERIRE
LB HAY- A 2016 4£ 12 H 31
H o £ EHERIIAAE
EBHNHBRAZIBERT » Al
72 30 HEFHESREFR
A0 Bk 2730,614,000 T
(2015 £ : ## 644,521,000
TC) o FFENEREEEK -

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and
limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (‘LCR”),
loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQO”) and liquidity
buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s
liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test
(including institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other
methods at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems
such as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound
Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA, the
Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis
and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and
stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under normal circumstances,
assumptions have been made relating to on-balance sheet items (such as
deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items (such as loan
commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on
contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and
balance sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the
future 30 days maximum cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based
on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has sufficient financing
capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing
operation. As at 31 December 2016, before taking the cash inflow through the
sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day
cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$2,730,614,000
(2015: HK$644,521,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. ERERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

43 FisrgEeER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retail,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and
trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31
December 2016, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the three
stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing needs
under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain
a liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector
entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under stressed
scenarios. As at 31 December 2016, the liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$5,211,372,000 (2015: HK$5,367,446,000). A contingency plan is being
established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and
responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on unconsolidated basis.
During the year of 2016, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
70%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mEESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
A. FErMEELE A. Liquidity coverage ratio
2016 2015
IR E LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
HE
- EF - First quarter 151.84% 146.69%
- BTFE - Second quarter 149.42% 186.18%
- BEFE - Third quarter 150.11% 155.79%
- SHUUZRRE - Fourth quarter 140.99% 139.37%
TREN T S LR The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic
HERENZEEN mean of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and
B TAF H 424505 1Y the calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity
mENEEEERENE position.
flir T B A B R Eh
RN BT
CULE R S WS br Y& =i
TREEL o
MENEEEEREDL The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which comprises
JEEFG AR & AR the positions of local offices and overseas branches of the Bank specified by the HKMA
B (EYT3E OREhte) for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
FA) Kot g fm e
EREREARIRITZA
R IR ORI AT
4HRK -
ARRE I EE LR The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
e BE AR DR AT R section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

KO OfT M H
www.chiyubank.com
o R —
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mEESEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. F[HAE 4 B. Maturity analysis
TREAEER 12 The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
ABlHZEEKA relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
BEHYEIHH 347 the contractual maturity date.
HINEEAR EE
K A FEAEE S LTI
H EFRIER IR 73 45
2016
—& ==
R —EAN =@ +=@#F —ZAFE "EUE THEE 4t
Up to 1to 3 3to0 12 1t05 Over 5 HH
On demand 1 month months months years years _ Indefinite Total

BETIL  BNTT O BETST BWTE BWTT  EWTT  BNTRT BETR
HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

BE Assets
IR & KA TR At Cash and balances with
o i iope banks and other financial
institutions 489,770 4,554,574 - - - - 230,027 5,274,371
TESRT B Bt & Rl s Placements with banks and
—Z+ZEANFIE other financial institutions
ERIEIT maturing between one
and twelve months - - 680,536 357,332 - - - 1,037,868
FUE B DU HES L ATEZ:  Financial assets designated
T EREE at fair value through profit
or loss
- s — Debt securities - 432,133 165,862 39,258 16,690 - - 653,943
FTESmTE Derivative financial
instruments 96,135 1,162 4 107 2,027 - - 99,435
B R RIS Advances and other
accounts
- BFEK — Advances to customers 5,488,549 516,735 2,003,604 3,056,637 13,690,259 5,684,441 105,129 30,545,354
- BHEHE — Trade bills - 84,208 370,191 137,609 - - - 592,008
YA Investment in securities
- TJfE — Available-for-sale
- s — Debt securities - 10,666 1,089,681 2,751,201 3,949,925 - - 7,801,473
- fres — Certificates of deposit - 232,181 619,184 3,429,743 768,534 - - 5,049,642
— BRI R — Loans and receivables
- B — Debt securities - 299,771 154,690 76,861 - - - 531,322
- Belnats — Equity securities - - - - - - 5,239 5,239
HEYE Investment properties - - - - - - 203860 203,860
bUE R G Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 1,532,373 1,532,373
HAh& E (REREFRIEE E ) Other assets (including
deferred tax assets) 63,290 653,598 169 2,004 60,489 - 2,004 781,554
BESE Total assets 6,137,744 6,785,118 5,083,921 9,850,752 18,487,924 5,684,441 2,078,632 54,108,532
Liabilities
ST R H MRl 770 Deposits and balances from
Bt banks and other financial
institutions (232,773)  (43,829)  (89,283) (638,170) - - - (1,004,055)
FTEEmTE Derivative financial
instruments (9,724) (4,086) (1,472) - (1,689) - - (16,971)
BFK Deposits from customers ~ (23,944,492) (7,579,747) (7,338,112) (6,508,567)  (66,702) - - (45,437,620)
HANIRTERCEH (EfEERT  Other accounts and
TRV R R AR TE & (E ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (260,169)  (240,198)  (39,768)  (39,486)  (193,733) - - (773,354)
BEeE Total liabilities (24,447,158) (7,867,860) (7,468,635) (7,186,223)  (262,124) - - (47,232,000)
TRENE AR Net liquidity gap (18,309,414) (1,082,742) (2,384,714) 2,664,529 18,225,800 5,684,441 2,078,632 6,876,532
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HA & (SR ERIEE R ) Other assets (including

HERE

=
SRR B2 7K
Rk

TEERTE
HFEK

HAMARIF R (LS TERS
MIRFIRERIR S ()

=it
REE B

2015
—F =7
Higy  —EAN ={@H +MEA —ZEHF AR E FHEE dazt
Up to 1t03 3t012 1to5 Over HiH
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
T BT T T BT BT r BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 1,768,906 6,478,132 - - - - 303,474 8,550,512
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one
and twelve months - - 1,890,221 1,617,899 - - - 3,508,120
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss
— Debt securities - 9,187 262,687 75,466 638,541 - - 985881
Derivative financial
instruments 87,190 1,895 4 - 246 - - 89,335
Advances and other
accounts
—Advances to customers 4,880,507 482,174 1,300,098 2,893,880 11,594,560 5,981,983 177,068 27,310,270
— Trade bills - 94,878 141,407 242,746 - - - 479,031
Investment in securities
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities - 514,791 490,680 1,074,843 3,675,554 - - 5,755,868
— Certificates of deposit - 541,085 313,137 3,345364 693,383 - - 4,892,969
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities - - - - - - -
— Certificates of deposit - - R R R - - -
— Equity securities - - - - - - 87,737 87,737
Investment properties - - - - - - 246,860 246,860
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 1,533,802 1,533,802
deferred tax assets) 6,521 136,985 2 2,034 50,631 - 4,936 201,109
Total assets 6,743,124 8,259,127 4,398,236 9,252,232 16,652,915 5,981,983 2,353,877 53,641,494
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (142,633) (847,878)  (215,491) - - - - (1,206,002)
Derivative financial
instruments (12,501) (803) (4,566) (378) (4,123) - - (22,371)
Deposits from customers (21,745,388) (9,530,978) (8,505,321) (4,532,143)  (447,084) - - (44,760,914)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (263,766)  (645,935) (34,513) (48,854)  (199,628) - - (1,192,696)
Total liabilities (22,164,288) (11,025,594) (8,759,891) (4,581,375) (650,835) - - (47,181,983)
Net liquidity gap (15,421,164) (2,766,467) (4,361,655) 4,670,857 16,002,080 5,981,983 2,353,877 6,459,511
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. FHAR 4T (&) B. Maturity analysis (continued)

RHEEA H B The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
HCERITEE () provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets
FART) ARSI such as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than
il o AT ER A one month as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
K 1 [HAZE payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
o PIAER BT reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the
Hosslh THIHE ) & residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the
EE o B R EIEE amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of
sy ERfEE 2 A E provisions, if any.

HAEZAEPERS

A 2 B0 3 % 1 AF 2

o HAREH 2
T TSR R
o8 ERCEH
BEZHEEFAR
I8 > A SRS
B TAMEERS - B
AR Z BECHIR
E T HH BE A (A

=P

Y e R H B HE RS The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order

Eees Py Ay ey =p- ] to comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
CER1TE (PFE) # disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

JI) 2 ARBRIER S 5
Bary - PriEsE A
RIULFF R RAE
FHIA -
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C. IHENEHH M Z RITH
BER

(a) IFTETRZEER

ML T AR 12
A 31 HZ I eRE
ELAFIER SRS B TR
ZIRE -

ERAER Financial liabilities
$R1T R HAh £ mif% Deposits and balances
W E R aERR from banks and other
financial institutions

EFEEK Deposits from customers
HoAth il & {5 Other financial
liabilities

et == Total financial liabilities

SRIE R Financial liabilities
$R1T R H A £ mit% Deposits and balances
W e K456y from banks and other
financial institutions

EFEFR Deposits from customers
HAthm & Other financial
liabilities

SR B Total financial liabilities

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31
December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturity.
2016
—Z =
—EAA =fEA +=#EA —EHE HEME fEst
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5

1 month months months years years Total
HETT HETT EHTT AYTT AETT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(276,602) (90,102) (651,466) - (1,018,170)
(31,526,056) (7,352,471) (6,565,775) (69,496) - (45,513,798)
(473,907) (2,956) (23,743) (15) (500,621)
(32,276,565)  (7,445,529) (7,240,984) (69,511) - (47,032,589)

2015

—F =%
—EAN =fEH +=EA —Z£T1F AFEME Hast

Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5

1 month months months years years Total
BT BT BT T AT T BT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
(990,606) (216,487) - - (1,207,093)
(31,279,491) (8,524,659) (4,577,521) (471,651) - (44,853,322)
(702,643) (3,629) (19,732) (726,004)
(32,972,740)  (8,744,775) (4,597,253) (471,651) - (46,786,419)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the
contract is in an asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the
tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain
derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net
basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency
forwards and currency swaps.
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4, &BEEEHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
A3 msrEeEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C. ¥ E&QRHE ot Z RITHR C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
BER (E) (continued)
(b) PTETEZEHER (&) (b) Derivative cash flows (continued)
2016
—= ==
—EAN =EA +=ER —ZAF AFYUE fEst
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total

AT  EBTIT A%TT  BRTT  BRTT  A%NTT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000

PR EEEELEE > Derivative financial
SR E liabilities settled on a
net basis (12,606) (950) 62 (1,149) - (14,643)

MRS > Derivative financial

TSR TE instruments settled on a

gross basis
HERA Total inflow 2,215,816 290 - - - 2,216,106
Ve Total outflow (2,215,001) (286) - - - (2,215,287)

2015
—F =%
—EAN =fEH +=MEH —Z0fF HFEME Hast
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total

ARTIT BWTOT BN TOT BT BB TIOT BNETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R AR ARG B Derivative financial

e =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (16,677) (6,354) 5,659 (3,880) - (21,252)

Derivative financial
instruments settled on a

gross basis
Total inflow 5,298,510 99,489 - - - 5,397,999
Total outflow (5,298,046) (98,980) - - - (5,397,026)

104



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Led,

BRI (8D

4. SRMEREE (8)

A3 RBESER (&)

C. IHENEHH M Z RITH
R (8
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BROKIE

ARAAEEFT 2016 4 12
H 31 Him% PRI RS
SR HA R 2 FOh
TH > HEQEEREEYE
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WA HEOR R S B Rl

ASEEF? 2016 4F 12 F 31
B Z A B Or B LA AT 75
S o S
566,364,000 T ( 2015
0 W 1,276,231,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2016 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$7,902,378,000
(2015: HK$6,376,826,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn within
one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
December 2016 amounting to HK$566,364,000 (2015:
HK$1,276,231,000) are maturing no later than one year.

105



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

BRI (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. ERERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEE

4.4 Capital management

RFTEAEHNEEARER
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SITEB T S HEE BIA
ERAHE - ST

ASRAT E PR BT A Bl S aR
IR RARE IR L
FEUAN B AR HE R (5 B b A
TR o /RO (5 B R AR HE R 4
G (EERRE) StEAs
F o AT S S (E R
BIi% sTEEAGEMERE
JRRAYAE 2 T A ALK -

RIRTEGRH AR
EEH ELANE R FHRA — e 5
JEBRE AR » WEEE A
st EA M  E A
SR E AR - AIRTE
SR (R stEE
STRHER TSR A AT -

AIUTHAE R I CREBHERE
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The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Bank’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Bank has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Bank’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the
Bank’s capital adequacy. The Bank has complied with all the statutory capital
requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation
as further elaborated below:

The Bank has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to
calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation
exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised
(credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Bank has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA
risk of the counterparty.

The Bank continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the
general market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures and, with the approvals from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX
positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Bank continues
to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market
risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Bank continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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4. ERERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAREE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AGRITH 2016 LEAEGRA W“B
BEAT RS U & £
FEERERTM TEE %ﬁﬁi
Fe o WRVEDK - #e B EsE —
SOIEEIES | NETEA TS ERT
TP £ S5 — SO
TARAMEB I RENER
JEBRFT R HIERINEA - fETEE
AR R AR A — A
EEZ ~ iR — SR E AR iR {E
HEALER - FIF > ASRITIRER
ALY & AR LE R E e T (E
] > DASCRESES SR R AR S R e
BERNARCER - REATRRA
i ZIS?EE‘I:EHEI&F?IE fl&l ¢
FRyEAEHEE > WERES
Efﬂ’]*)“ﬁ“ﬂ&z%ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁéﬁ
Feta iR AL -

BESL - AESRATEEERIEEEE
Al EE%F‘%F”@%E
AR EEBEE - \ZIS%EEU
SEFS RS ~ B [E e R
i~ (SRR WP‘%?‘Z%@%%
JERHE B R AT R 2
MR K E AR KA Zliilé
/J? DACRIEASSRITRESERF RLAFHY
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GEISERIRE > ORRFmE - [
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The Bank has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2016. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Bank
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Bank is drawn up annually and then submitted to
the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is
determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Bank
maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its
business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

A. Basis of regulatory combination

The combined basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
Bank’s local offices and overseas branches specified by the HKMA for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For
accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs

and the list of subsidiaries is set out in note 45.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as

GO fEANNEA AT follows:
T
2016 2015
BEGE BN B EEHEER HARUEER
E Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
#E77T (RRELA) AFE/AT  Chiyu Banking Corporation
(Nominees) Limited 138,836 138,836 133,787 133,787
HEEEARATE Seng Sun Development
Company Limited 41,092 40,814 41,390 41,220
A TR ] Grace Charter Limited - (10,981) - (10,980)

22016 4£ 12 B 31 H - ifi

AR B 2 B B REAE

EENEAORE - iR

BE LGRS RE
(2015 4F @ 4) -

22016 4£ 12 A 31 HJR
S AT JBS 2 B[Rl I B 4
T B 51 AR R4 5 6 [ T B
B HRE T DEFRIE T B R
[F&r& 7% (2015 4 ¢

)

VSRR S
BRFTEE 45 -

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
combination but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at

31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination where the
methods of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 45.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

B. Capital ratio

2016 2015
CET1 capital ratio 17.06% 15.66%
Tier 1 capital ratio 17.06% 15.66%
Total capital ratio 19.61% 18.21%
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HREHE (8D
B. HEALEER (&)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

B. Capital ratio (continued)

MPEtRU EERERZ
BRI & HFE AR AL
T

The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

capital ratios is analysed as follows:

2016 2015
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
IR —REA - TR CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
FefctifH
HEZFTEERG Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
AR instruments 300,000 300,000
e piwill Retained earnings 5,187,743 4,618,523
EH T RER Disclosed reserves 1,226,854 1,383,682
B A ER  FT 3 3 B FE CET1 capital before regulatory
—HER deductions 6,714,597 6,302,205
B R CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
LK
1 Valuation adjustments (8,617) -
EATIRR R AL A TH & {5 Y Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
RERITEE liabilities (60,452) (50,625)
AV EEGEESAE Gains and losses due to changes in own
RIS B 1 (5 6 i i credit risk on fair valued liabilities
BT A AR (75) 3)
R4 3th 5 ezt (5 H Cumulative fair value gains arising from
FISEHR) #iTE the revaluation of land and buildings
(8 6 T R A 1 B R (own-use and investment properties)
N PEE (1,304,297) (1,352,111)
— SR TS L Regulatory reserve for general banking
et risks (230,023) (223,259)
S B — 4 A Y S Total regulatory deductions to
B YARE CET1 capital (1,603,464) (1,625,998)
L E I — A A CET1 capital 5,111,133 4,676,207
HIN—EEAR AT1 capital - -
—4E Tier 1 capital 5,111,133 4,676,207
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4. &RERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.4 BEREHE (8 4.4 Capital management (continued)
B. HAMLE (&) B. Capital ratio (continued)
2016 2015
AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER BB REHS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
LB A BB ARL Collective impairment allowances and
SRR TR R — % regulatory reserve for general banking
SRITIR B ek risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
TR G capital 175,391 154,737
B EHIR . B A Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 175,391 154,737
TEGEAR BT Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
e &EERST A ZRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains
AR 4 iy R e sR arising from the revaluation of land
Y (A RISERR) and buildings (own-use and
g N i i ligible for
S T (B B A T A investment properties) elig
LA T iives inclusion in Tier 2 capital 586,934 608,450
HOREANEE Total regulatory deductions to
HIR 4%H Tier 2 capital 586,934 608,450
ZHRE Tier 2 capital 762,325 763,187
B Total capital 5,873,458 5,439,394
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

B. Capital ratio (continued)

The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

2016
Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625%
Higher loss absorbency ratio -
Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.528%

The capital conservation buffer ratio, higher loss absorbency ratio, countercyclical
capital buffer ratio (“CCyB ratio”) and the applicable JCCyB ratios for Hong Kong
and non-Hong Kong jurisdictions for 2015 are 0% in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section
“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

C. Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:

2016 2015

AT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tier 1 capital 5,111,133 4,676,207
Leverage ratio exposure 54,270,647 54,133,653
Leverage ratio 9.42% 8.64%

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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5. KEMKERNAHE (E)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
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The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework
to ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all
other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include
verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models
and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against
observed market transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily
valuation movements; review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. Significant valuation issues are reported to senior management,
RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the
open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments
held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technigue that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount
rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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5. KEMKENAHE (&)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAPERENSHM TR (8D

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models. The inputs can be observable or
unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less commonly
traded option products which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain
complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based on
broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures,
default probabilities and recovery rates.
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A. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale
securities (Note 24)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

Financial assets
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale
securities (Note 24)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2016

BEE FRES% F=RESR et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BETT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
- 653,943 - 653,943
96,135 3,300 - 99,435
227,829 6,988,528 585,116 7,801,473
- 5,049,642 - 5,049,642

- - 5,239 5,239
323,964 12,695,413 590,355 13,609,732
(9,724) (7,247) - (16,971)

2015

s ETREM EB=EEH HaE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 985,881 - 985,881
87,190 2,145 - 89,335
154,557 5,601,311 - 5,755,868
- 4,892,969 - 4,892,969
- - 87,737 87,737
241,747 11,482,306 87,737 11,811,790
(12,501) (9,870) - (22,371)

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 for the Group during the year (2015: Nil).
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5. BEENEENATE () 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

51 DA EESENSRITE (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
B. E=B4HTHE &5 B. Reconciliation of level 3items
2016
SREE
Financial assets
Tt ERS
Available-for-sale
securities
BEiEs Retrrsgss 45t
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2016 FE1H1H At 1 January 2016 - 87,737 87,737
g Gains
— HAth g mEas — Other comprehensive income
- At ERSGRT — Change in fair value of
AN EEL available-for-sale
securities - 334 334
HA Purchases 585,116 - 585,116
HH Sales - (82,832) (82,832)
>2016 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 585,116 5,239 590,355
2015
Financial assets
ok &SR
Available-for-sale
securities
[EesEceas s 27 Wt
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
AT AT i T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
201541 H1H At 1 January 2015 - 76,084 76,084
Wz Gains
— Htr2midEs — Other comprehensive income
- AEHEE R — Change in fair value of
NFEZEL available-for-sale
securities - 11,653 11,653
#r2015F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 87,737 87,737
2016 4 12 H 31 H % 2015 As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, financial instruments categorised as Level
FI12H3LH EEE=RE 3 are mainly comprised of debt securities and unlisted equity shares.
R T B T EEREETE
% N IR L TTRSAE
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAPHERENSBM TR (8D

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

For certain illiquid debt securities and certificates of deposit, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on
unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore,

these instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are
determined with reference to multiples of comparable listed companies,
such as average of the price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset
value, if appropriate comparables are not available. The fair value is
ratios of appropriate
comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the
underlying equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s
other comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by

positively correlated to the price/earning

HK$262,000 (2015: HK$4,387,000).

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value

of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from

the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
carrying value

interest at prevailing market interest rates and their

approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same
approach as those debt securities and certificates of deposit measured at fair

value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve

appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the

balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying
values being approximation of fair values.

2016
FRIEE AE
Carrying value Fair value
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (Note 24) 531,322 530,325
2015
MR E AL
Carrying value Fair value
AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

Financial assets
Loans and receivables (Note 24) - -

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
fair values disclosed.

2016
FBE FEHR F=ES #Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BETT BETT BTt BT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
Financial assets

Loans and receivables - 77,004 453,321 530,325
2015

E—Eg FB% F=E4 HaEt

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BT BWToT BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Financial assets

Loans and receivables - - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change
in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with
last year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect
the differences between the comparable properties and the subject
properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire
measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales
price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are
generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as

BRAMIMEE 775 B E AR o] follows:
87774 BRI it S AN RSN R B R R (5
Valuation method Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs average to fair value.
MSLEOEE | YR AT LR E e E 3.67% T (EE  AEEE -
WAEAE g, (drE) | (20150 -18.7 %) The higher the premium,

Market comparison
approach or income
capitalisation
approach

Premium/(discount) on
features of the property
compared to comparable
properties

the higher the fair value.

PriEms - A FERE
The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.

VAR B AT R
Ziafd, () 928
EE AR RN 2R By 2=
5o BIANp AR 2 i E) -
firE ~ fF2EE ~ M IR
g ~ R MR E -

Premium/(discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets

Investment properties
(Note 25)

Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 26)

— Premises

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 25)
Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 26)

— Premises

2016
BEEk FRES B=ESH et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
6,990 196,870 203,860
- 1,489,261 1,489,261
6,990 1,686,131 1,693,121

2015

EE BTER Bl HE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT WL BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7,140 239,720 246,860
- 1,495,414 1,495,414
7,140 1,735,134 1,742,274

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

2016

JEEREE

Non-financial assets

Yk - SRt
Properties, plant
and equipment

KBk BEE
Investment
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2016 239,720 1,495,414
Losses
— Income statement
— Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties (13,950) -
— Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - (702)
— Other comprehensive
income
— Revaluation of
premises - (40,931)
Depreciation - (18,034)
Additions - 24,614
Transfer into Level 3 - -
Reclassification (28,900) 28,900
At 31 December 2016 196,870 1,489,261
Total unrealised losses for
the year included in income
statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2016
— Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties (13,950) -
— Net loss from revaluation
of premises - (702)
(13,950) (702)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

2015

IEREE
Non-financial assets

Y2k ~ et heaslh
Properties, plant
and equipment

Investment
properties Premises
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2015 223,800 1,356,200
Gains
— Income statement
— Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 15,920 -
— Other comprehensive
income
— Revaluation of
premises - 101,925
Depreciation - (16,725)
Additions - 34,091
Transfer into Level 3 - 19,923
Reclassification - -
At 31 December 2015 239,720 1,495,414
Total unrealised gains for the
year included in income
statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2015
— Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 15,920 -

The transfer of properties into level 3 is due to change in the premium on
features applied between the subject and comparable properties during the
year. Premium on features is determined with reference to differences in
features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come
from recent market transactions may be different in each year, the premium
on features applied between the subject and comparable properties would
change from year to year accordingly. As a result, the significance of
adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to the
transfer of properties into level 3.
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6. Net interest income

Interest income
Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers

Investment in securities and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Others

Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers
Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

94,893 244,987
805,135 769,014
245,920 267,768

3,675 4,499

1,149,623 1,286,268
(18,229) (38,456)

(287,703) (394,102)

(4,610) (6,130)

(310,542) (438,688)

839,081 847,580

Included within interest income is HK$948,000 (2015: HK$8,882,000) of interest with
respect to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31

December 2016.

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$1,123,274,000 (2015:
HK$1,248,457,000) and HK$310,542,000 (2015: HK$438,688,000) for financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Insurance

Securities brokerage

Loan commissions

Payment services

Bills commissions

Safe deposit box

Funds distribution

Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage
Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from:
Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

Trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense
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2016 2015
BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
119,600 89,821
82,176 144,341
52,939 55,342
20,247 19,422
18,477 22,625
16,097 15,492
7,125 12,145
12,021 14,582
328,682 373,770
(11,474) (19,207)
(7,652) (7,601)
(19,126) (26,808)
309,556 346,962
54,904 61,646
(420) (201)
54,484 61,445
7,126 7,104
(218) (2,707)
6,908 4,397
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8. X B 8. Net trading gain
2016 2015
AT HRETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
s (tR) HA ¢ Net gain/(loss) from:
YRR 5 Fe Y NPEAS ) e i Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 67,186 59,539
FERTE Interest rate instruments (2,469) (2,482)
P Commodities 8 -
64,725 57,057
9. Hih&MEEFKZS 9. Net gain on other financial assets
2016 2015
BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
] B S S RUNS Net gain on available-for-sale securities 84,451 15,353
o Others (116) (49)
84,335 15,304
10. HAn&EEBUA 10. Other operating income
2016 2015
BT AETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT E R R A Dividend income from investment in securities
- JE ETEERNE - Unlisted investments 7,402 10,411
FeEYIE Z HEBHRA Gross rental income from investment properties 5,618 6,073
B BRREYE S T Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (143) (12)
HoAth Others 2,379 466
15,256 16,938
PHEBRSEYIHE Y S EE Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$41,000 (2015: Nil) of
FENRHAEEYE S B direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let during the year.

K8 T & 41,000 T
(2015 4« f#) -
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11. Net charge of impairment allowances

Advances to customers
Individually assessed
- New allowances
- Releases
- Recoveries

Net charge of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances (Note 23)

Collectively assessed
- New allowances

- Releases
- Recoveries

Net charge of collectively assessed loan impairment
allowances (Note 23)

Net charge of loan impairment allowances

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(44,462) (189,824)
7,744 12,756
(36,718) (177,068)
(27,090) (22,734)
- 408

(Y] -
(27,091) (22,326)
(63,809) (199,394)
(108) (281)
(63,917) (199,675)
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12, BT H 12. Operating expenses
2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ANBEH (BEEEME) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- RN R A - Salaries and other costs 247,596 236,198
- RIRECA - Pension cost 20,706 19,944
268,302 256,142
%E&?ﬁfﬁi'ﬁh (e Premises and equipment expenses
&) (excluding depreciation)
- FEMS - Rental of premises 33,482 31,388
- EERHY - Information technology 28,434 27,984
- HAh - Others 10,642 9,219
72,558 68,591
e (FFsE 26) Depreciation (Note 26) 27,896 25,559
el Auditor’s remuneration
- e - Audit services 2,210 2,210
- JEREETIRS - Non-audit services 322 180
Hias Other operating expenses 87,168 90,421
458,456 443,103

13. {EYENTEFE 13. Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on investment properties
ZF (B1R) /s

2016 2015
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BN Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on
F (R JUEs investment properties (Note 25)
(Fffzx 25) (14,100) 16,740
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14. & EEYE - S 14,

KeasetfiZ 3518

VR~ [ S S
2R (58D
HflBE TR

15. f9H 15.

SRR N Z AR R
T

AR
A
- FENEARIE
- (A R

TEIMSTH
- FEREF AT

PEIERIH
I 2 LR e g ]
FARBERIBITAIR R
(Ff$5E 300

EA BRI
SHELATIAR 16.5%
(2015 4 : 16.5% ) H2H -
SN2 B £
s R AR A B
BRTATERR BT
st

Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
equipment

2016 2015
BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net gain/(loss) from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings 35 1)
Net loss on revaluation of premises (702) -
(667) (1)
Taxation
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2016 2015
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 103,538 104,000
- Under-provision in prior years - 2,332
103,538 106,332
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 24,325 36,517
127,863 142,849
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits (Note 30)
(11,099) (74,464)
116,764 68,385

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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15. fRIE (&) 15. Taxation (continued)
REE R AR EENE The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
PRI » BB S EAR R that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

STRAVIRIEAZRAIT ¢

2016 2015

BT AT T

HK$°000 HK$’000

FRAE A A Profit before taxation 768,623 641,299
JZFHR 16.5% (2015 4 : Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)

16.5% ) sHEAVIIA 126,823 105,814
H BRI A R Effect of different taxation rates in another country (2,748) (20,986)
AR U A Income not subject to taxation (21,844) (17,442)
s EAR AT FASZ Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 14,816 14,647
TFEFR R Under-provision in prior years - 2,332
NEZIN L Foreign withholding tax (283) (15,980)
T AFRIE Taxation charge 116,764 68,385
HIER Effective tax rate 15.19% 10.66%

16. B&E 16. Dividends
2016 2015
St “EE T “ag
Per share Total Per share Total
BE BETT A AT
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
P HARE B First Interim dividend - - 46.00 138,000
ERPHAREE Second Interim dividend - - 64.40 193,200
- - 110.40 331,200
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subjected to MPF
Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$12,776,000 (2015: approximately
HK$12,442,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$479,000 (2015: approximately HK$259,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$3,483,000 (2015: approximately HK$3,142,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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18. E - 5@ E ABKFE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s
AEHisE emolument

(a) EEM< (a) Directors’ emoluments
KEEREERALTITEER Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
ASRAT KRB HE A R respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries
k75 T 24T e B s o Wi =2 T within the Group during the year are as follows:
EREEWT ¢
2016 2015
EWETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HHEE Directors’ fees 1,669 1,671
HAthE Other emoluments
- B FORRG - basic salaries and allowances 3,848 3,934
- BIB#RCZ A4 - discretionary bonuses 1,859 2,433
- HAth (EFERREHRO - others (including pension contributions) 993 1,038
8,369 9,076
KT PRILIERITES Fees of HK$750,000 (2015: HK$750,000) were paid to the Independent
2 Tl <t 48 %H K 7% 1% 750,000 T Non-executive Directors during the year.

(2015 : #&#4750,0007T )
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18. E - 5@ E ABKFE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s

AEMi& (%) emolument (continued)
(b) CGS5TEEHMAERT (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
ZAEHTH CG-5
HeEREBENZCG-5 (iR{EH Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the
HINRIEES]) » REEAEE HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of
ZiEmEBABRTEAEN the Group during the year are as follows:
HrEEE R
(i) AR T I (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2016
RSEHEAR FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JERIE B #ast JERE RIE T
Non- Non-
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

A¥TT ABTIT BETT B¥TT  BRTT ABETT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000

[ Fixed remuneration
e Cash 9,315 - 9,315 7,894 - 7,894
FFENHHN Variable remuneration
4 Cash 3,357 - 3,357 1,853 - 1,853
12,672 - 12,672 9,747 - 9,747
2015
EAEEAE TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRIE HEAE HaEt IR IEHE HEET
Non- Non-
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BT AETT AT BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[ Fixed remuneration
i Cash 7,300 - 7,300 9,387 - 9,387
FFENHEN Variable remuneration
i Cash 2,784 482 3,266 1,967 - 1,967
10,084 482 10,566 11,354 - 11,354
DA E#rB 454 (20154 ¢ 3 The remuneration above includes 5 (2015: 3) members of Senior Management
%) EREE N B 5% (2015 and 5 (2015: 6) members of Key Personnel.

F168) FHEAE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s
emolument (continued)

(b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
CG-5 (continued)

(ii) Deferred remuneration

2016 2015
EHREEAR FEARE EREHEAE FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key

Management  Personnel Management Personnel

AETIT BRI BT BT

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Deferred
remuneration
Vested 486 - 509 -
Unvested 479 - 965 -
965 - 1,474 -
At 1 January 965 - 992 -
Awarded - - 482 -
Paid out (444) - (375) -
Reduced through
performance
adjustments (42) - (134) -
At 31 December 479 - 965 -

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System.

- Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines,
including Chief Executive and Deputy General Managers.

- Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
the assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk
exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked
to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the profit,
including heads of material business lines, head of Treasury, as well as heads
of risk control functions.
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19. EEHS RENIRFT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

B EAth S RbERERI &S
i3
2016 2015
BT HTT
HK$°000 HK$’000
[ S Cash 185,466 167,192
IR IR TR R Balances with central banks 323,646 479,759
TETRSRTT B < B AR Balances with banks and other financial
HI%EER institutions 210,685 1,425,429
TESRAT R B At AR — Placements with banks and other financial
& B N EHEZ B /AT institutions maturing within one month 4,554,574 6,478,132
5,274,371 8,550,512

20. REBDANEEEE(L 20. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
SFABRSZ SREE

SR AR B 3 iR Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:

T
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FANEEA IR At fair value
[=viHice=s Debt securities
- RSN - Listed in Hong Kong 206,335 468,754
- INEAMSN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong 447,608 517,127
FHARAEEE Total securities 653,943 985,881
FE AR RT3 Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
AT
2016 2015
BT HERTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
NEIRE Corporate entities 653,943 985,881
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative
financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period,
a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the
stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison with
fair values of instruments recognised on the balance sheet. However, they do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group'’s
exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates or market interest rates relative to their terms. The
aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly
for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies
and requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in
trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list
before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to
control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions,
and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must
be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation,
reporting and control.
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21. TSR TEESH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each class of
derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

2016

TEHRA
=i SRR dEst

Not qualified

for hedge
Trading accounting Total
AT AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
875,601 - 875,601
2,201,697 - 2,201,697
52 - 52
52 - 52
3,077,402 - 3,077,402
- 738,987 738,987
3,077,402 738,987 3,816,389
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21. TSR TEESH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2015

FRFEHRA
HE EpLiFaprs Hast

Not qualified

for hedge
Trading accounting Total
AT T AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
781,910 - 781,910
5,243,467 - 5,243,467
501 - 501
501 - 501
6,026,379 - 6,026,379
- 948,600 948,600
6,026,379 948,600 6,974,979

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do not qualify as hedges
for accounting purposes but are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance
with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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21. TSR TEESH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

st (&)
() TrEERTH (8D

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

TRBMEETTAES The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial

FETEHM®N12H31H > instrument as at 31 December :
AT -
2016
AVERE ATEER
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
AREERA ARFEERA
HE HHeEsi st HE $MPEshi gt
Not Not
qualified qualified
for hedge for hedge
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
AT B¥ToT BT B%Tor BTt BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PEREEY Exchange rate contracts
BHA R A Spot and forwards 96,139 96,139 (9,724) (9,724)
L Swaps 1,159 1,159 (430) (430)
SNEERT S HARE Foreign currency
options
- EARARE - Options purchased 3 3 - -
- HH AR - Options written (3) (3)
97,301 97,301 (10,157) (10,157)
IES=ES| Interest rate contracts
PagA Swaps 2,134 2,134 (6,814)  (6,814)
97,301 2,134 99,435 (10,157) (6,814) (16,971)
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21. TSR THESH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency

options
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

2015
NHEEE NHEAE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
REFEHRA REFEHRA
HE $hgsti HEET HE  HhEshi HaE
Not Not
qualified qualified
for hedge for hedge
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
BT OBMTL BT BN BN BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
87,190 87,190  (12,501) (12,501)
1,896 1,896 (802) (802)
3 3 - -
() (3)
89,089 89,089  (13,306) (13,306)
246 246 (9,065) (9,065)
89,089 246 89,335  (13,306) (9,065) (22,371)
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e (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T EE%H 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
gt (&) (continued)

(a) $TE£4ERTE (8) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

TEINLTAEEMTEZ(E
S\ - WS RA
AR R LR 2R
REVPHIRIGRMARE -

HERGLY
RIS R ]
{50
HNEESE S

- B

& B BRI fE Bra =R

(#1738 (B4 B &t
F o IEBEHUAN S8 T
ZEN R &AL 2 HIR
ik -

A IRAT B 3 1 3 B A
Hip#ARNITERZ SN
FoE R B
12,607,0007% (20154 :
#4436,0007C ) - HREEF
EE TR AR Ry B
12,607,0007% (20154 :
#%436,0007T ) «

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative financial
instruments and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

2016 2015
BT ATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards 1,070 2
Swaps 2,386 9,523
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 3 6
3,459 9,631
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 400 827
3,859 10,358

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for
the Bank amounted to HK$12,607,000 (2015: HK$436,000) and the effect of valid
bilateral netting agreements amounted to HK$12,607,000 (2015: HK$436,000).
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e (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. $T4& SR T B ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
gt (&) (continued)

(b) st (b) Hedge accounting
INEEHEESH Hedges of net investments in foreign operation
2016412 H31H » 8H As at 31 December 2016, there were no RMB-denominated deposits from customers
ANBEBAENE P T designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
FUE Ryt T H » LA operations (2015: Nil).
YMELEFRE (2015 ¢
f) -
NG A R o7 2 g There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income
5 1B A U %S 2= N T ER statement during the year (2015: Nil).

(20154 : fiE) -

22. BB EHAMERETE 22. Advances and other accounts
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EPN=CN Personal loans and advances 5,931,490 5,437,047
ANEIERR Corporate loans and advances 24,836,654 22,049,877
BFPE Advances to customers 30,768,144 27,486,924
EHOREAER (M 23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)
- F{E A - Individually assessed (83,408) (65,003)
- {EAH ARG - Collectively assessed (139,382) (111,651)
30,545,354 27,310,270
H o Trade bills 592,098 479,031
31,137,452 27,789,301

2016512 A31H » & F &R As at 31 December 2016, advances to customers included accrued interest of
I JFE 5 F1) B 1% 40,214,000 7T HK$40,214,000 (2015: HK$44,137,000).
(20154 : #i#444,137,0007T) -

A2016F12H31H - ZHHE As at 31 December 2016, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade bills

5 BB AF W AT ) R (E (2015: Nil).
(20154 : 4f) -

144



BRI (8D

23. ERUBIERERE

#2016 £1 H 1 H

Prlza g (e 11)
S PR  RUEI R

W E E R
PrE A A ol

HE 2 A=A

#2016 412 A 31 H

#2016 £1 H 1 H

Prlzargfds (e 11)
EEPIHEE < RUEI R

Wizl E AR
VE 2 75 A

22016 412 H 31 H

A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Led,

23. Loan impairment allowances

At 1 January 2016

Charged to income statement (Note 11)

Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible

Recoveries

Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2016

Charged to income statement (Note 11)

Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible

Recoveries

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016
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2016
FAEBIRPAL
Individually assessed
BA 23] &5t
Personal Corporate Total
AETT AT HETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 65,003 65,003
- 36,718 36,718
- (21,511) (21,511)
- 7,744 7,744
- (948) (948)
- (3,598) (3,598)
- 83,408 83,408
2016
HAATHS
Collectively assessed
A A #Est
Personal Corporate Total
AT AT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
4,631 107,020 111,651
713 26,378 27,091
(469) (469)
() - ()
- 1,110 1,110
4,874 134,508 139,382
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RN (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. E5BEER () 23.Loan impairment allowances (continued)

2015
FEAE )5S
Individually assessed
EA ] HaEt
Personal Corporate Total
AT T BT IT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
#2015 1H1H At 1 January 2015 - 16,093 16,093
s PR (YR 11) Charged to income statement (Note 11) - 177,068 177,068
RSN AU e &K Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible - (125,809) (125,809)
Wi o] E A IR Recoveries - 12,756 12,756
PTELRE XE S a3 Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (8,882) (8,882)
VE SR Exchange difference - (6,223) (6,223)
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 65,003 65,003
2015
AR RS
Collectively assessed
fEA AE] Haat
Personal Corporate Total
AT T AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
20151 H1H At 1 January 2015 4,982 87,277 92,259
PlasFe (B 5 (Credited)/charged to income statement
(FfF5E 11) (Note 11) (88) 22,414 22,326
RSN AU e] &K Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible (263) - (263)
PR S0 72 2H Exchange difference - (2,671) (2,671)
2201512 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 4,631 107,020 111,651
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities

2016
BATETR TEESRAS iR
At fair value At amortised cost
FEZ
THEERSE  FIFEES  SRRERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and 4a=t
securities securities receivables Total
BT BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Treasury bills 1,707,412 - - 1,707,412
Other debt securities 6,094,061 - 531,322 6,625,383
7,801,473 - 531,322 8,332,795
Certificates of deposit 5,049,642 - - 5,049,642
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 12,851,115 - 531,322 13,382,437
Equity securities 5,239 - - 5,239
12,856,354 - 531,322 13,387,676
2015
HAHEYIRE TR AT (R
At fair value At amortised cost
ez
ot e FIEHEG SRORERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and 4t
securities securities receivables Total
BT BT BT AMETIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Treasury bills 949,864 - - 949,864
Other debt securities 4,806,004 - - 4,806,004
5,755,868 - - 5,755,868
Certificates of deposit 4,892,969 - - 4,892,969
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 10,648,837 - - 10,648,837
Equity securities 87,737 - - 87,737
10,736,574 - - 10,736,574
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong

- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Unlisted

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities
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2016

REZ
THbEREE  IHHES  SREERK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3,112,447 -
1,690,365 -
4,802,812 -
8,048,303 531,322
12,851,115 531,322
5,239 -
12,856,354 531,322
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong

- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Unlisted

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities

149

2015

RS
It ER sy EHAHER SEORIEUGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
HARETT HARETT ARTIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2,236,542 -
739,359 -
2,975,901 -
7,672,936 -
10,648,837 -
87,737 -
10,736,574 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns
Banks and other financial institutions
Corporate entities

Sovereigns
Banks and other financial institutions
Corporate entities
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2016

HEZ
TR ERES EHER  SRRJEBGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
4,170,843 - -
7,779,887 - 531,322
905,624 - -
12,856,354 - 531,322

2015

FEE
kR FIIHES  ERRJERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,854,961 - -
6,167,717 - -
1,713,896 - -
10,736,574 - -
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2015

Additions

Disposals, redemptions and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015
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2016

HEZ
TR ERES ERER  SRRJEBGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
10,736,574 - -
16,749,638 - 524,979
(14,321,966) - -
(2,312) - 6,358
(51,410) - -
(254,170) - (15)
12,856,354 - 531,322

2015

FEE
eSS FIEIHES  EOERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
9,539,378 676,862 -
10,228,673 - -
(8,802,007) (675,000) -
(25,561) (1,862) -
23,759 - -
(227,668) - -
10,736,574 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Investment properties

2016 2015
BRI AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 246,860 230,120
Fair value (loss)/gains (Note 13)

(14,100) 16,740

Reclassification to properties, plant and
equipment (Note 26) (28,900) -
At 31 December 203,860 246,860

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of

the leases as follows:

2016 2015
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 196,160 239,140

Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 7,700 7,720
203,860 246,860

As at 31 December 2016, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2016 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly

transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
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2016 E1H1HZ
R HE

g

HiEE

Eff

AT (MfEE 12)

FERERHE

T A RE Y
(ftaE 25)

DE ST RH

2016412 A 31 H>
ARTHFE

142016 4£ 12 F 31 H
RAMEBSS E
FatIT B RORE

2016 £ 12 A 31 H~
HRIAFE

btEE  RAE B (E
IIMTAIT

2016412 A 31 H
ERRAE
EASE

26. Properties, plant and equipment

Net book value at
1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Impairment for the year

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 25)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2016
At cost

At valuation

153

Bt > BEE
BE i &5t

Equipment,

fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
1,495,414 38,388 1,533,802
25,532 14,859 40,391
(917) - (917)
(41,633) - (41,633)
(18,034) (9.862) (27,896)
28,900 - 28,900
@ (273) (274)
1,489,261 43,112 1,532,373
1,489,261 138,588 1,627,849
- (95,476) (95,476)
1,489,261 43,112 1,532,373
- 138,588 138,588
1,489,261 - 1,489,261
1,489,261 138,588 1,627,849
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Net book value at
1 January 2015

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Impairment for the year

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 25)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2015

At 31 December 2015

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2015

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

e~ EE

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2015
At cost

At valuation

154

R Bt S et Hast
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
ATT ATT AT T
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
1,374,000 43,082 1,417,082
34,514 4,187 38,701
- @ ()
104,190 - 104,190
(17,290) (8,269) (25,559)
- (266) (266)
- (345) (345)
1,495,414 38,388 1,533,802
1,495,414 127,994 1,623,408
- (89,606) (89,606)
1,495,414 38,388 1,533,802
127,994 127,994
1,495,414 - 1,495,414
1,495,414 127,994 1,623,408
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

2016 2015
AT ANTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,132,857 1,113,355
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 321,545 347,749

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 31,959 31,380
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 2,900 2,930
1,489,261 1,495,414

As at 31 December 2016, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation
carried out at 31 December 2016 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants
at the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
recognised in the premises revaluation reserve as follows:

2016 2015
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Decrease)/increase in valuation
(charged)/credited to premises revaluation
reserve (40,931) 104,190

As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of premises that would have been included
in the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses was HK$283,386,000 (2015: HK$232,618,000).
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MR ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. HiEE 27. Other assets
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEE Precious metals 57,023 -
JREUS IR R PR Accounts receivable and prepayments 664,079 150,484
721,102 150,484
28. ZEER 28. Deposits from customers
2016 2015
BT HAETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIHEBEERR B AR AR AR Demand deposits and current accounts
- NH] - Corporate 4,678,808 4,405,580
- EA - Personal 566,507 572,151
5,245,315 4,977,731
FEEFK Savings deposits
- NH] - Corporate 4,103,772 3,485,646
EEPN - Personal 14,536,543 13,232,185
18,640,315 16,717,831
TEHH ~ FHHH BB AR Time, call and notice deposits
- N\H] - Corporate 10,438,659 11,639,112
- & A - Personal 11,113,331 11,426,240
21,551,990 23,065,352
45,437,620 44,760,914
29. HdETE B AE# 29. Other accounts and provisions
2016 2015
BB BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HAFE(TREIE Other accounts payable 534,044 940,072
HEfff Provisions 23,644 23,656
557,688 963,728
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MAHsHRMIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. BAEERIH

BIERIARIREE &GS
HAFE129% TSR L 5

30. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and

Bl REARE B

S ELAE I S e PR TR
W B P R R

FfRIE IR e -

HEARRNZELERIA
(BE) /AATZEHE -

unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

and the movements during the year are as follows:

DUR EAEERE N 2 ZEEAD

T

2016 21 H 1 H

fise/ (H&D) Wk
(P 15)

BRCHA AU R
D A2

2016412 H 31 H

20151 H1H

st (Ha) ek
(B 15)

fise (H&0) Hith
EAlie

S

2015412 31 H

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet,

2016
Ty o -
iEE BEEf | 5i=| BRAEREE HAt 4EEt
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
BETT  EETT  ERTT BT BT AETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2016 9,977 214,083 (52) (75,803) (24,101) 124,104
Charged/(credited) to
income statement
(Note 15) 3,994 2,635 52 (17,697) (83) (11,099)
Credited to other
comprehensive income - (7,863) - (8,885) (16,748)
Exchange difference R - 3,078 - 3,078
At 31 December 2016 13,971 208,855 (90,422) (33,069) 99,335
2015
hg s \ ,
wfigE  BEEM e TRAE AR HoAth Hast
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation _revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
AT B TT BETT AT BMETT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2015 9,004 199,401 (133) (26,678) (1,527) 180,067
Charged/(credited) to
income statement
(Note 15) 973 5 81 (53,685) (21,838) (74,464)
Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income _ 14.677 N (736) 13.941
Exchange difference - 4,560 R 4,560
At 31 December 2015 9,977 214,083 (52) (75,803) (24,101) 124,104
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BIRsERRMEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. EEMRIE (&) 30. Deferred taxation (continued)
AR AR Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
THE EEARIE A FER legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
B > AR AERR IR K [B]— taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
BURE - A alRHE A AR offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

A A RS IE  E ALU FIE Y T
B IR NYIERE
BERNYIIRZ £48 Eat

AT

IR & Deferred tax assets

IR EE Deferred tax liabilities

IRIEFRTEEE (848 12 {F Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
Higdla) twelve months

IRIEFRTEAE (848 12 {F Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
A& twelve months

31. A 31. Share capital

EEET AR - Issued and fully paid:

3,000,000 AL 3,000,000 ordinary shares
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2016 2015
REETIT EEETTT
HK$°000 HK$000
(60,452) (50,625)

159,787 174,729
99,335 124,104
2016 2015
BETIT BETIT
HK$°000 HK$000
(60,452) (50,625)
192,857 198,831
132,405 148,206
2016 2015
BT EETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
300,000 300,000
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HERBERNEE  32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

Operating profit

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Unwind of discount on impairment allowances
Advances written off net of recoveries

Change in balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity over
three months

Change in placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity over
three months

Change in financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in deposits from customers

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation
Cash flows from operating activities included:
— interest received

— interest paid
— dividend received
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MAHsHRMIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash (outflow)/inflow
before taxation

2016 2015
BT ARTIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

783,390 624,560
27,896 25,559
63,917 199,675

(948) (8,882)
(14,236) (113,316)
(252,993) 300,885
2,261,449 (133,854)

331,938 115,050

(15,500) (3,998)

(3,394,288) 976,369

(3,146,218) (902,648)
(570,726) 162,621
(201,947) 564,566

676,706 818,077
(406,040) 42,138
(29,666) 178,928
(3,887,266) 2,845,730
1,197,329 1,328,261
(326,478) (493,098)
7,402 10,411
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e (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. GFEHEREFENE 32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(&)
(b) & HERBHETEEHSE (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
#oth
2016 2015
BT HERETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EERESEEFIEHE 3 Cash and balances with banks and other
B BN ERR T R & financial institutions with original maturity
iR within three months 4,681,026 8,210,160
FEEIEAF 3 [MANZIE Placements with banks and other financial
SRAT Ry Eo At 4 Rl Ak > institutions with original maturity within
SEREIN three months 20,059 228,862
FEFEIHEAF 3 AN Treasury bills with original maturity within
i % three months - 199,999
FEIHEHE 3 EHAHRNZ Certificates of deposit with original maturity
FEss within three months - 159,256
4,701,085 8,798,277
33. ARBBREE 33. Contingent liabilities and commitments
AR E RIS S IARE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
AR &EFIRFNIE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
e rmdntd - HAgTEEEH is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
A 7 G E A R RS S R adequacy ratio.
RESREREAEAN T
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
B EEERIEH Direct credit substitutes 5,148 472,552
BAXZ SRR SR A S Transaction-related contingencies 25,786 358,291
B BAM SR AE Trade-related contingencies 535,430 445,388
REEES B AN A 2 Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
HEE without prior notice 6,026,415 4,346,128
HphRYE > HEHIH Other commitments with an original maturity of
- LESPIT - up to one year 93,769 425,471
-1EDE - over one year 1,782,194 1,605,227
8,468,742 7,653,057
(SEE I EEE Credit risk-weighted amount 782,016 1,456,269
EE R IR BEERE (5 The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
7% CG&ER) #HA) 5178 - It Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
WEEHUIA R G W F 2 A5 R characteristics of each type of contract.
FHAEE)Z FAMRE: -
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MAHsHRMIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34, BARRILE 34. Capital commitments
AREE RPN H T 3 The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
2 EARESHEUT statements:
2016 2015
AT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$'000
A R S S ME AR Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 15,651 861
EALAEEREL Authorised but not contracted for - .
15,651 861
DA EBEARIERE 57 Ry The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
A2 BRI R BRAE » DAR equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
A M FHHE TR 2K
¥ o
35. ZOBFHERE 35. Operating lease commitments
() fERARFEAN (a) As lessee
R4 B =~ &8 The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments
HE &4 THIAASE under non-cancellable operating leases:
B R 2 A o L B R
FrZE 25 2 i<
2016 2015
BT AT IT
HK$°000 HK$'000
T R Land and buildings
- A 1A - Not later than one year 28,566 24,923
-1 EE 5 ER - Later than one year but not later than five
years 24,721 15,306
53,287 40,229
T TR 2 4 Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
EH&T T F R 2 renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
Tohife H 2 B B agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.
LI HIFRF ARG B
TEH % -
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35. LBEHERE (&)

36.

(b) fERHEA

FRABA WIS ~ &L
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52 B TE 11 # 2 0 i 0T
AN LR RE KRR
18 - ZEFRENSREEA
SEEIIER R EE AR -
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BT % T H R AT R R B
AR BOEARB TR E
FER A R B AR -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Land and buildings

- Not later than one year 3,272 4,848

- Later than one year but not later than
five years 1,431 1,575
4,703 6,423

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according
to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.

36. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities
of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37. YEHE 37. Segmental reporting

() HZEHE Y

(a) Operating segments information

EXN PR Z S S EY 2
B TR AT - £
SRS R FE56T5 - SR
SRR % PR R
% -

A SRATHI R ERITE B R E Y
LRI T - RS
TR BT~ B B B AR E
DD&E{&{D%H&%& P& S prlmzE
~ IMIESERS BT A o E SR
TEBGEERRBEAZ S - 1
BIESRITEB G EZERBEAE
T BNEEGG  BRTEE
E% HAEFREHEENREE
~ FUSSHISMERL L] < T HAt 28
*ﬁ%ﬁ FHAEAEESA R
B~ BV S -

/\f’“%ﬁ’] e B WA S
BRCR AR R A
”rB(ﬁii_ﬁE 2 - PEEHE
ECEREIE N E ST HOE VY
CIRPS=SZt FENE 0T 30k
B PEEBRACHEMH  HEE
WEE S AT > 1%
LA A - W B AR
FEAVEFE

AR B Y E B A IR By ) B U
A i S EHA & EEH0FH
BUAAREHIERS - RIILFTA 2615
I FARTFI S A R S H LS B
e

The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest
rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.
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MAHsHRMIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37. pEEE (&)
() #ZERE Y (8D

EZAISUION
- S

- ST

B RARRAA
/(D
s
)
FERLATAE
S AR ST
A
T
(B50) s
B
DR AT P
EBBA
IEERS ()
Z ci

B

Kl

RPN THEE
DR

HIEE EfEPRE - 85
M RS < FatR

BARTASF

wE
Sy ERERE

HfH
Pagcii=tizy

HftrEoet
AN H
res

Net interest income
- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission

income/(expense)
Net trading gain/(loss)

Net loss on financial

instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before
impairment allowances

Net (charge)/reversal of

impairment allowances

Net operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit
Net loss from fair value
adjustments on

investment properties

Net loss from

disposal/revaluation of

properties, plant and
equipment

Profit before taxation

Assets
Segment assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Amortisation of securities

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

2016

EASHT  FRT  EER Hdth /Nt AHHEH e

Personal  Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BA¥ToT BTt AT B¥TT B¥TT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(14,268) 545,250 308,099 - 839,081 - 839,081
314,383  (104,373)  (210,010) - - - -
300,115 440,877 98,089 - 839,081 - 839,081
213,795 96,193 (432) - 309,556 - 309,556
17,844 13,058 (2,202) 36,025 64,725 - 64,725
- - (7,190) - (7,190) - (7,190)
- (116) 12,559 71,892 84,335 - 84,335
75 2,818 - 38,536 41,429 (26,173) 15,256
531,829 552,830 100,824 146,453 1,331,936 (26,173) 1,305,763
(1,062) (63,743) - 888 (63,917) - (63,917)
530,767 489,087 100,824 147,341 1,268,019 (26,173) 1,241,846
(294,312)  (114,137) (16,386) (59,794) (484,629) 26,173 (458,456)
236,455 374,950 84,438 87,547 783,390 - 783,390
- - - (14,100) (14,100) - (14,100)
- - - (667) (667) - (667)
236,455 374,950 84,438 72,780 768,623 - 768,623
9,303,696 23,998,600 19,147,478 1,658,758 54,108,532 - 54,108,532
35,826,897 10,822,718 293,266 289,119 47,232,000 - 47,232,000
- 1,133 - 39,258 40,391 - 40,391
6,008 3,944 139 17,805 27,896 - 27,896
- - (4,045) - (4,045) - (4,045)
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37. EHE (B

(a) #EEBEY (&)

EZAIISUION
- S

- PSS
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Gt /i
B
LETIN
R B
G

SRR
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SRR ()
R A TR

HEWEE ~ S5tk
[l i

ERtRtATAF] (R

HE
SYESEEE

HfH
Pagcii=tizy

Hftreeet
BN
g

Net interest income
- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission

income/(expense)
Net trading gain
Net loss on financial

instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before
impairment allowances

Net reversal/(charge) of

impairment allowances

Net operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on

investment properties
Net loss from disposal of

properties, plant and
equipment

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Assets
Segment assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Amortisation of securities

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

2015

EASRT  ERT MRS FAl et EfFHE e

Personal  Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal _Eliminations  Consolidated
BT BT BT BT WETT OESTT BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(60,036) 444,902 462,714 - 847,580 - 847,580
328,452 (36,866)  (291,586) - - - -
268,416 408,036 171,128 - 847,580 - 847,580
248,053 99,625 (716) - 346,962 - 346,962
19,719 24,485 4,129 8,724 57,057 - 57,057
- - (16,503) - (16,503) - (16,503)
- (49) 15,353 - 15,304 - 15,304
152 948 - 38,368 39,468 (22,530) 16,938
536,340 533,045 173,391 47,092 1,289,868 (22,530) 1,267,338
727 (201,754) - 1,352 (199,675) - (199,675)
537,067 331,291 173,391 48,444 1,090,193 (22,530) 1,067,663
(275,733) _ (105,190) (9,482) (75,228) (465,633) 22,530 (443,103)
261,334 226,101 163,909 (26,784) 624,560 - 624,560
- - - 16,740 16,740 - 16,740
- - - ©)] €] - €]
261,334 226,101 163,909 (10,045) 641,299 - 641,299
8,127,021 21,187,748 22,544,823 1,781,902 53,641,494 - 53,641,494
34,470,640 11,342,940 1,062,925 305,478 47,181,983 - 47,181,983
- 1,227 - 37,474 38,701 - 38,701
4,487 3,554 146 17,372 25,559 - 25,559
- - 27,423 - 27,423 - 27,423
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37. SRS (&) 37. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) RS (b) By geographical area
UTERERE = The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:
BB
2016 2015
REURE FEHUR(E -
EHERIZ ERERHT HEHRTZ " *EH '[JJ
BB BRI OFERA 42F
Net operating Net operating 6
income before Profit  income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
AR IT AT BT T IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
& Hong Kong 1,133,900 727,426 1,075,683 765,239
o R Y A Mainland of
China 171,863 41,197 191,655 (123,940)
1,305,763 768,623 1,267,338 641,299
2016 2015
PEE FEmEEE taEE  JEREEE
Non-current Non-current
Total assets assets Total assets assets
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tk Hong Kong 50,703,565 1,731,013 50,445,086 1,774,104
Hp e Y 3 Mainland of
China 3,404,967 5,248 3,196,408 6,564
54,108,532 1,736,261 53,641,494 1,780,668
38. BiEfEEE 38. Assets pledged as security
22016412 H31H » K As at 31 December 20186, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$667,000 (2015: Nil)
[ 3 SR AR B Ry were secured by bills. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these
7¥5667,0005T (20154 ¢ liabilities was HK$665,000 (2015: Nil) included in “Trade bills”.
fie) - REESERIEER
EEH 2 BESTE LG

#% 665,000 7T ( 20154 :
) WH THSEE A
B -
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39. &R T H ZFESY 39. Offsetting financial instruments
TRIRAEE TS 2 The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
ATV R RS R A sk A enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:
Fo AR AT o 3 4 R B <
THR

2016

REREEAERTEHZ
THRREH

Related amounts not set

off in the balance sheet

REEA®EET REEAERT

EHRSE HHYCHESmM FIm SR . Bz \
BRI =i=co b 8 ERTH B TR
Gross Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial assets
recognised financial liabilities presented in the Cash
financial set off in the balance Financial collateral Net
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received amount
AR T AR IT EWETIT EWETIT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
& Assets
#5744 B Derivative financial
TH instruments 3,293 - 3,293 (3,293) - -
HAr&EZE Other assets 613,296 (505,764) 107,532 - - 107,532
616,589 (505,764) 110,825 (3,293) - 107,532
2016
FENREEEERPEHZ
iR
Related amounts not set
~ ~ off in the balance sheet
REEREET NEE&HERT
EREGERR - ERRSm RSB A B Bz .
=ttt =Ui=rot] XL SRMTH e Pt
Gross Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial
recognised financial assets liabilities Cash
financial set off in the presented in the Financial collateral Net
liabilities balance sheet balance sheet _instruments pledged amount
AT T AT T BT IT BT IT BEETIT B¥TT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
=0 Liabilities
744 Fh Derivative financial
TE instruments 5,558 - 5,558 (3,293) - 2,265
HAth&f& Other liabilities 517,013 (505,764) 11,249 - - 11,249
522,571 (505,764) 16,807 (3,293) - 13,514

167



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Letd.

MR () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

39. &R TE IS (&) 39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

2015
FANEEABRPIREZ
THEAEH
Related amounts not set off
. - o - in the balance sheet
. RAREAGERT REEAERSRT
EHESEM I3 EMaRef FURI SR EE CHHLZ )
HEELEH B EE FE SRITE Bleifm PR
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial assets
recognised financial liabilities ~ presented in the Cash
financial set off in the balance Financial collateral Net
assets balance sheet sheet _instruments received amount
BT BT BT BT BT AB¥TIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
& Assets
174 4Rk Derivative financial
THE instruments 436 - 436 (436) - -
HAth&#E Other assets 228,755 (209,429) 19,326 - - 19,326
229,191 (209,429) 19,762 (436) - 19,326
2015
FANEEABRPIREZ
THEAEH
Related amounts not set off
o . - . in the balance sheet
o hEERERT RHREAERT
e 5> Ol IR eman EEfZ )
AN = ER k| pE R ERITH B R
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial
recognised financial assets set liabilities Cash
financial offinthe  presented in the Financial collateral Net
liabilities balance sheet balance sheet __instruments pledged amount
BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
i=Ci-t Liabilities
144 Ft Derivative financial
TE instruments 9,176 - 9,176 (436) - 8,740
Hfth& (& Other liabilities 673,604 (209,429) 464,175 - - 464,175
682,780 (209,429) 473,351 (436) - 472,915

HAEBHETH ST
A TR G ERGS LAY
Tihedt > o AL 4 S H At
B ENEN AR
Zy T2 MR B AR AT B

TFERAEE -

predetermined events occur.
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For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2016 2015
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at year end - 3,704
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding during the year 3,704 4,356
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41, FEZEWMEALRS

o EE A R B 75 e e 8 o B
BAREEAT (P Har
W o ] R B I A IR E S
& (" ) REEPA I
TEIERTT - EAREE T T o

() ERATE REATERZEH
LA BT 5

BATRYIEATR -

R ERHER AR TR
- P ERAE 2 TR
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2 o BISR T ERY A
IR 2 AN A T
o H S G A G B
S HBH E A ) -

DRE < A S L A S B B 1 k7 92
S -

M IEE R b S F
BHETITSRE RS > BftE
O A R BT S -

REBST B SRITHEFTINAS B
TR E BRI EE) - 1Y 2016 4
12 A 31 H > REEHEEE
Je AT o R ERA TR AR A 57 7
ks W 1,464,018,000 T
(2015 4 : 34l 1,973,947,000
TE) JkdE 155,135,000 It
(2015 4 : 3 1,047,912,000
) BZE 2016 £ 12 31 H
1A - BRI AR T AL U R
TS ERE FE AR R ST H
YEEESY I Ry AETE 17,713,000 ST
(2015 4 : 3#E# 100,174,000
T ) Rkl 9,034,000 75 (2015
A 1 RS 14,201,000 7T ) ©

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

41. Significant related party transactions

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
through China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin
has controlling equity interests.

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn
controlled by BOC.

Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the
PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal
course of business which include loans, investment securities and money
market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As
at 31 December 2016, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC
of the Group were HK$1,464,018,000 (2015: HK$1,973,947,000) and HK$
155,135,000 (2015: HK$1,047,912,000) respectively. The aggregate amounts
of income and expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with
BOC for the year ended 31 December 2016 were HK$17,713,000 (2015:
HK$100,174,000) and HK$9,034,000 (2015: HK$14,201,000) respectively.

170



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

BRI (8D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

41. FEZEMEALR S (&) 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)

@)

(b)

BRI E KA EIER 2
fAFHEFTIR S (8D

PN g s /A b e N
A2 B P 2016
12 A 31 H > AREEAHRCHE
ARy WS 1,293,431,000 T
(2015 4 : i 1,482,791,000
T) ° BZE 2016 4E 12 H 31 H
1 AR BRI F] 2 2 FLAh 2
F BRI I S B A P EE AR
SEH A B 11,260,000 T
(2015 4 : 3% 21,101,000
JL) e

PAEER > ARG IR L iRk iy
ST PR o I R
82,832,000 7T - MHBHH B IR
e 03 58 27 2 B BRI AR By B T
71,892,000 jT » X GG —fk
PASEIPRRICETT -

PR_EHCH RS » BLHARROYE] R
BECY TP 2 HoA 2 =]l 4 5
PN

SLBURIRE - (CEENRHE © I
[ R H A B S
HIX 5
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PR b AR B A2 - T
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FIE

- (EET - BRI RIS RS
G'E
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(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(b)

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2016, the
related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$1,293,431,000 (2015:
HK$1,482,791,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising
from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$11,260,000 (2015:
HK$21,101,000).

During the year, the Group sold an unlisted equity security to BOCHK at a
price of HK$82,832,000. The realised gain from disposal of the unlisted equity
security was HK$71,892,000. The transaction was entered on normal
commercial terms.

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the
other companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered
material.

Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates
and other state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC
Government through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly
controls a significant number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into
banking transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
other state controlled entities in the normal course of business at commercial
terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other
state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and
- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
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41. FEZEMEALR S (&) 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(c) TEBEAR

THEEEARRERLER
P S R D S SR
ST fRE R B R
Al EIEERREEEEA
B o AEEEIEREB T G
ZEHEE A BFER A E
IR ERRE - G
FeF8E » AREENGZ A AR
TREZERAF 2 EEEE
ANBSRHAR#E AL HETE

N

FHEEABEE12H31H

IHAREZ BT

FI R HoAH A 3 & A

(d) ENEATRIESER

A 2016 4 12 A 31 H > AR
TEHEEGBERE K
P RETT S B E L NITE
T BT T 2 B R E SR By AR
19,424,000 7¢ (2015 4 © j#&
i 20,427,000 7T ) °

(c) Key management personne

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including directors and senior management. The Group
accepts deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key
management personnel in the ordinary course of business. During both the
current and prior years, no material transaction was conducted with key
management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as well as
parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31
December is detailed as follows:

2016 2015
BT ATT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 8,369 9,076

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate sums of amounts due to subsidiaries
of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during the normal course of
business at commercial terms are HK$19,424,000 (2015: HK$20,427,000).

172



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

MAHsHRMIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. BIEmEE 42.

LA 53 #7152 B Tl B R
IRITRSGT 2 2B Rk
BSR4 - B
FEHIRAC 5 ¥ T P AE s T
NG e 2 IV R
ZH K8 R AR HE R 1 )
i HAAIERE AT B2
5 B T R At 2 A {5
F - (A HE PR A FTTEM
B S AT e A ] R
JE\ B B RS EHE LR Z Py
FEH - R RTT 2 aoh
1T F R G =%
AT Z ST

AR [ (8 1 B 57 ok L6 3k
HE R m s 14 05 B
PEfERELEEE 10%E0L 2
fEfET

o st
o

A
&

International claims

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is
located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office is
located.

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

2016
FESRATRANE
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT E| S5
T Vil RIS LN
Non-bank

Official financial  Non-financial
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT T AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Mainland of China 7,989,000 70,000 1,031,000 9,090,000
Hong Kong 169,000 - 475,000 7,036,000 7,680,000

2015
FESRITRLA R
Non-bank private sector

B JERRTT T

$RAT BTHERE ERbERE LN Hast
Non-bank

Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions _ private sector Total
BT T BT BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Mainland of China 9,123,000 98,000 - 2,341,000 11,562,000
Hong Kong 432,000 240,000 6,333,000 7,005,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

2016

HEAE HEAR

SR T RIMY
Pesae EREE  RRRE R

ltems in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
HEMETT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Central government, central

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 2,716,268 3,287 2,719,555
Local governments, local

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 2,731,461 173,192 2,904,653
PRC nationals residing in Mainland

or other entities incorporated in

Mainland and their subsidiaries and

joint ventures 3 4,329,181 299,473 4,628,654
Other entities of central government

not reported in item 1 above 4 270,794 3,100 273,894
Other entities of local governments not

reported in item 2 above 5 - - R

PRC nationals residing outside

Mainland or entities incorporated

outside Mainland where the credit is

granted for use in Mainland 6 1,876,776 254,687 2,131,463
Other counterparties where the

exposures are considered to be

non-bank Mainland exposures 7 489,774 - 489,774
Total 8 12,414,254 733,739 13,147,993
Total assets after provision 9 53,975,482

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 23.00%
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43. FESRATRIPIIEBR AR

43. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

& (&
2015
HEARA EEAR
EEE FAH A
HEIEE JoE B R A s ERREE
ltems in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT HATT HATIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PO ~ PO EUREASRY  Central government, central
Hts - HIRB AT REE government-owned entities and their
g subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 2,929,134 501,206 3,430,340
HoOAFBUR ~ #OFBURRFERY Local governments, local
Hts - HItB AT REE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 2,897,470 524,297 3.421,767
N EEEHAFEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
WEE IR - HHEA or other entities incorporated in
HREGERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 4,199,867 1,238,090 5,437,957
NEFEIE FitsE—Ig iy Other entities of central government
TP B ELfil A not reported in item 1 above 4 459,656 - 459,656
NEFEIE FEE I8 8L Other entities of local governments not
I IR LA iR reported in item 2 above 5 } ) )
R NE R FESME  PRC nationals residing outside
eI > ELAFESNEY Mainland or entities incorporated
(535 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 1,323,420 239,020 1,562,440
Hith 32 5 ¥ FmEEE&EHE  Other counterparties where the
R ISR T P HE exposures are considered to be
HRYE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 413,501 - 413,501
gt Total 8 12,223,048 2,502,613 14,725,661
HURCE M 1% 0T & e AR Total assets after provision 9 53,521,546
BEABENWEFEE On-balance sheet exposures as
(B EYEEEE TE percentage of total assets 10 22.84%
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(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

44, Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

2016 2015
AT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
5,274,371 8,550,512
1,037,868 3,508,120
653,943 985,881
99,435 89,335
31,137,452 27,789,301
13,387,676 10,653,742
3,913 3,913
203,860 246,860
1,512,370 1,513,876
60,452 50,625
721,102 150,484
54,092,442 53,542,649
1,004,055 1,206,002
16,971 22,371
45,457,044 44,781,341
129,521 41,012
557,688 963,728
55,841 54,239
156,725 171,751
47,377,845 47,240,444
300,000 300,000
6,414,597 6,002,205
6,714,597 6,302,205

54,092,442 53,542,649

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2017 and signed on behalf of the

Board by:
YUE Yi FU Kim
Director Director
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(b) Statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Premises
Available-for-sale securities
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedge
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Transfer to retained
earnings
Dividend

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Premises
Available-for-sale securities
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income
Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividend

At 31 December 2016

AR oy B (7 R 2 B A A 1R SR
T 2 ) (B ARAGRR S

HAA RS o

44, Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(et
Reserves
AR HE
FEEM  HEHRATE
A ekt BEIGEA BTG MR HERA 45

Reserve for

fair value

changes of

Premises available-

Share  revaluation for-sale  Regulatory  Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
AT AT R R AR AR AR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
300,000 1,057,186 15,583 254,199 61,932 4,463,967 6,152,867
- - - - 565,816 565,816
- 87,540 - - 87,540
- - (1,820) - (1,820)
- - - - 6,361 6,361
- - (840) - (65,519) (66,359)
- 87,540 (2,660) - (59,158) 565,816 591,538
- - - (30,940) 30,940 -
R R R - (442,200) (442,200)
300,000 1,144,726 12,923 223,259 2,774 4,618,523 6,302,205
300,000 1,144,726 12,923 223,259 2,774 4,618,523 6,302,205
- - - - 575,984 575,984
- (33,714) - - (33,714)
- - (55,084) - (55,084)
- - (1,314) - (73,480) (74,794)
- (33,714) (56,398) - (73,480) 575,984 412,392
- - - 6,764 (6,764)

300,000 1,111,012 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,187,743 6,714,597
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* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.
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46.

47.

FIRTZHBAE

14 2016 £ 12 F 31 HAR
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45, Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2016

are as follows:

YRR E NS RATT
I EERllipg—¢ Stk -d=E L] ELE TR FiE FEER
Place and date of Issued Interest
Name incorporation/operation share capital held Principal activities
ERIT (REA) ARAE &5 y=Filiddh) 100% CEUN;IEYS g Eidiva
198111 H3H 100,000 #&7T
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee services and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
HEEHARAT i Lo piliean) 100% B K SR RS
19614 12 H 11 H 2,800,000 37T GiEh=
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
FlEARRAE i y=Filiddh) 100%* B
200145 H 4 H 25T
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2

AT R AR

AR AE] 46.

o EE N B (e ] 55 e 2
BPRHREAREES
F] R m A w g
ERERREEAT (TE
&) REESTA GG
BT HAEEET
PR

M BHRREA
AT 2017 473

22 A ESEEmB Rk
Heff -

47.

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank

Ultimate holding company

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

(“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 22 March 2017.
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1. 28 - S EEEREE 1. Regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks
HNEEEX

PEEEE -~ 5 EE R ERE The bases of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk, market risk and operational risk are
gt B S E AR REE described in Note 4.4 to the Financial Statements.
BT ERRTEE 4.4 ot -

RAR TN R FTEIA SR This unaudited supplementary financial information has been prepared on a combined basis
E”k%ﬂEE’JAWﬁW‘ﬁ*” Itk for regulatory purposes. The basis of regulatory combination is set out in Note 4.4(A) to the
FEE S HHE B E A TS Financial Statements.

Ff5t4.4(A) »

NN S R FETE The table below summarises the regulatory capital computed on the same combined basis for
Z(EE - SR EEEEE credit, market, and operational risks.

BHA
2016 2015
HEMETTT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEE Credit risk 2,267,260 2,268,104
itz Market risk 12,877 9,509
PRl E R Operational risk 173,631 170,908
2,453,768 2,448,521

HREARRTZEAEHEEAR  For details of capital management and capital ratios of the Bank, please refer to Note 4.4 to

PERGEN > BRMBEEENEE  the Financial Statements.
4.4 -
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2. Capital requirements for credit risk

The tables below show the capital requirements for each class and subclass of credit risk

exposures as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital required for exposures under the IRB approach

Corporate
Small-and-medium sized corporates
Other corporates
Bank
Banks
Securities firms
Retail
Residential mortgages
- Individuals
- Property-holding shell companies
Qualifying revolving retail
Other retail to individuals
Small business retail
Others
Cash items
Other items
Credit valuation adjustment

Total capital requirements for exposures under the IRB

approach

Capital required for exposures under the standardised

(credit risk) approach
On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereigns
Banks
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are not past due
Past due exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures other than securities
financing transactions and derivative contracts

Securities financing transactions and derivative

contracts

Total capital requirements for exposures under the

standardised (credit risk) approach

Total capital requirements for credit risk exposures

180

2016 2015
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

326,008 328,826
1,249,530 1,182,814
370,468 454,930
12,235 10,578
35,389 27,369
3,516 3,674

15 3

52,655 37,537
1,390 1,489
147,013 151,957
1,682 535
2,199,901 2,199,712
710 495

399 381
31,561 29,379
6,048 5,331
170 211
27,524 21,043
155 3

711 11,549

81 -
67,359 68,392
2,267,260 2,268,104
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3. NERREEREXEETE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
HIEREER

3.1 NEFR LS REREER 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components

fEila

BETHEEEEARTLK - K The Bank adopts the FIRB approach to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for
SRATH AR Ay I SEFISRT most of the corporate and bank exposures, and adopts the supervisory slotting criteria
N JERL i R {5 i LRI A 250 approach to project finance exposures under specialised lending. The Bank adopts retail
SRR ELAERTELE > BIEPY IRB approach for retail exposures to individuals and small business. The following is the
MEEEHTEH & Es table showing the Bank’s different capital calculation approaches to each asset class and
B MEAERIEEE o EHE sub-classes of exposures (other than securitisation exposures).

NGNS Se Sibe s
EERAZENERIESE
STEUE o TRINHASRT
BRENBRT LR
BRdE (PRaGR LA R
BRIESN) PR IRV A

FHEITE -

HESHE FoEbRRE BRETE A

Asset class Exposure sub-class Capital calculation approach
BRI BB BRI TEE TIEPIE S CEHmE) BB R TEE

Corporate exposures Specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria | Supervisory Slotting Criteria Approach
approach (project finance)

U RE FEREA B P R AR ST B
Small-and-medium sized corporates FIRB Approach
Fiph 3%
Other corporates
B 7 E R e EITHEHE T (EEERE) STEE
Sovereign exposures Sovereigns Standardised (credit risk) Approach

J&E T E R A A B
Sovereign foreign public sector entities

% BRI T
Multilateral development banks
FRAT R\ R AT TR B P R AR E S T EA
Bank exposures Banks FIRB Approach
A
Securities firms
NEHAD RSB E T ERRI A VB B e (EEER) HRE

Public sector entities (excluding sovereign foreign public|Standardised (credit risk) Approach
sector entities)

LRI {[EPNERi351 = TENE R EAET EDE
Retail exposures Residential mortgages to individuals Retail IRB Approach

ZER N EHE B AR ERK
Residential mortgages to property-holding shell

companies

BERIEREE

Qualifying revolving retail

HAth N Z

Other retail to individuals

EXEYNTS

Small business retail
PR R K 9 ke (FEREbE) TEE
Equity exposures Standardised (credit risk) Approach
LAl R AR A BEIHHE e e T EA
Other exposures Cash items Specific Risk-weight Approach

HAtHE

Other items
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEEREE (&)
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(A) NEETRARGRERR
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AERATEE AR ERRE
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3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

ratings and external ratings

The Bank’s internal rating system is a two dimensional rating system that provides
separate assessment of borrower and transaction characteristics. For corporate and
bank portfolios, the obligor rating dimension reflects exclusively the risk of borrower
default and the facility rating dimension reflects transaction specific factors that affect
the loss severity in the case of borrower default.

BOCHK developed statistical models in group level to provide own estimated
probability of default (“PD”) for its corporate, bank and retail borrowers, and loss given
default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“‘EAD”) for retail exposures under retail IRB
approach.

The Bank uses internal rating system to assess the borrower’s likelihood of default for
all IRB portfolios. PD estimates the risk of borrower default over a one-year period. A
borrower credit grade means a grouping of similar credit-worthiness to which
borrowers are assigned on the basis of specified and distinct set of rating criteria, from
which the average PD are derived for risk-weighted assets calculation.

In the process of obligor rating assignment, variables of latest financial performance,
management quality, industry risks, group connection and negative warning signals of
each obligor are assessed as critical factors to predict borrower’s ability and
willingness to meet with the contractual obligations under different economic
conditions.
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%%%#&‘Z%ﬁﬁﬁa‘i% Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.1 PIERPAR Z 8t R R A B
o (8D

(A) NEETRARGRERR

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

ratings and external ratings (continued)

The obligors for corporate and bank, and retail PD pools are assigned into eight broad
obligor ratings including seven grades for non-defaulted obligors with sub-divisions
into 26 minor credit grades and one for defaulted obligors. In the supervisory slotting
criteria approach for the project finance exposures, there are four grades for
non-defaulted borrowers and one for defaulted borrowers in accordance with the
HKMA guidance. The estimates for retail IRB portfolios are pooled by nature of
obligors, facility types, collateral types and delinquency status into different PD, EAD
and LGD pools. This pooling process provides the basis of accurate and consistent
estimation for PD, LGD and EAD at the pool level for exposures arising from
residential mortgages to both individuals and property-holding shell companies,
qualifying revolving retail exposures and other retail exposures to individuals and
small business retail exposures. All credit transactions for corporates and banks are
assigned facility ratings (in terms of LGD) in accordance with the HKMA guidance.
LGD estimates multiplied by the PD estimates produce the expected loss (“EL”)
estimates, which are used to assess credit risk quantitatively.
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.1 PIERPAR Z 8t R R A B

o (8D

(A) NEETRARGRERR
PRSP 4R SRS MRET AR

HrEmts ()

AP PR S

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
ratings and external ratings (continued)

For each internal rating, the equivalent external rating in terms of default risk is as

B A 2 AA/ M S 4k below:
HIEAT:
PIER(= S48 WERRRBCES B R R
Internal Standard & Poor’s
Credit Grades Definition of Internal Ratings Equivalent
1 BB ALH” 17 F1” 2”7 F~ |The obligors in grades “1” and “2” have extremely AAA
2 AL « low default risk. o AA+
% BTSSR 3k The ol_Jllgor s capr?cn)tl) It_o meet its flnanC|e|1I A
B commitment on the obligation is extremely strong.
T AA-
3 BB AR 37 Fo{KELJHE | The obligors in grade “3” have low default risk but A+
g o (BfE—E R -5 aAE =2~ |are somewhat susceptible to the adverse effects of
F T S B S s b4 » | changes in circumstances and economic A
e e e s conditions.
[FRBTHLIAE MR However, the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial A-
commitment on the obligation is very strong.
4 BB ANLH” 47 ForfHE#EHK | The obligors in grade “4” have relatively low default BBB+
B Z R BIE4EyE B4 |risk and are currently under adequate protection.
Vs » {H B B S 4 EE s Howe ver, adverse economic conditions or BBB
(12 wilEs o R s |CNanging circumstances are likely to lead to a
iég’%z‘; SMHISTHRTES | eakened capacity of the obligor to meet its BBB-
HIHYHe financial commitment on the obligation.
5 B AR 5”7 FonFEE#EZY | The obligors in grade “5” have medium default risk BB+
TR\ o ML PR, R (& 7S A | which are less vulnerable to nonpayment than
/D IR R other speculative obligors. =5
" g e -t | HOWever, they face major ongoing uncertainties or
B E =34 El . - :
;TJE%E;; iﬁiﬁ;ﬁi%&?ﬂx exposure to adverse business, financial, or
t’jﬁ%.jé ?ﬁi&m QEZ = |economic conditions which could lead to the BB
I ﬂﬁgiiﬁ{iﬁj\fﬁ@ﬁbﬁx obligor’s inadequate capacity to meet its financial .
EUBITHEBEE - commitment on the obligation.
6 BB AYHR]” 67 FEaE 218 |The obligors in grade “6” have significant to very B+
EEY R K5 g |high default risk and are vulnerable to nonpayment.
. The obligors currently and in the near term have 5
= IS Mg the capacity to meet its financial commitment on
Eﬁé}{gij{gﬁéﬁiquﬁ%iﬁi _|the obligation but adverse business, financial, or
BTIE E%E -I'; e /jﬁbt economic conditions will very likely impair the 5
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁ:%ﬁjﬂzﬁfﬁb obligor’s capacity or willingness to meet its financial B
B I EB T EFE(E © |commitment on the obligation.
7 BBAGHR]” 77 Fortirs %) | The obligors in grade “7” have very high default risk CCC
B\ B HFitEE 25 LFERER  |and are currently quite vulnerable to nonpayment.
B ERNESRTERE The obligors’ ability to meet their financial
o B itment and obligation are dependent upon
{F - U RS AR - |Omm : gatior : cC
Ny favorable business, financial, and economic
Bl 4% e HyE , ,
RBISCORIRILRLE | B2 congions
Tlf‘ﬁﬁ“?%%xﬂ?i{t » BIfRATAER In the event of adverse business, financial, or
EEITEBEE - economic conditions, these obligors are not likely to C
have the capacity to meet its financial commitment
on the obligation.
8 BB ANGR]" 8" Forigzki®  |Obligors rated “8” are in payment default. D
&
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.1 NEEHk LS REEERKR 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
By (8D
(B) MEMERERAR

(B) Use of internal estimates

AGRATBR (5 FH 2= A%
REFENRF DR
FLSRAT R\ R HE R B
EEARSI > Rehnsg e
A EEEBNE
H o RIRTHRAEY
R~ BLRARRK
B AR ERIE R
G EANGEEE
it EEEE B8
e\ 5 B 3 T o

EERRGETIRE Y
BE N

HNEAEHEE TR
AR o ASRTT
FEAE I AP A A B
- ELHIE B TEAYBUR
FOREFE - WfFE (R
T3 (EA) #AD
H(E R
AR IEEOR -

EIR PR AERE I ERRY
SR FRRE
AHIEE B AE -
LB AT HE DR B 1
Wt I S H T
HYSRAT ~ FEPARGE
75 0% F] B 52 (5 Y #E
IR - RIRATIEZ ERE
AT (S B
RIEEHTR - M
B B AR ERA R
HYELHRARE -

Besides using PD estimates for regulatory capital calculation in corporate and bank
exposures, the Bank uses the PD together with the LGD and EAD estimates in the
credit approval, credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information,
etc., for the purpose of strengthening the daily management on all credit related
matters.

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

For collateral recognised under capital management, the Bank has well-defined
policies and procedures for collateral valuation and management which are compliant
with the operational requirements for recognised collateral of credit risk mitigation as
stated in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

For the credit exposures adopting FIRB approach for capital calculation purpose, the
recognised eligible guarantees include the guarantees provided by banks, corporates
and securities firms with a lower risk weights than the counterparty. The Bank takes
into account the credit risk mitigation effect of recognised collaterals through its
determination of the net credit exposures and the effective LGD.
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5[%%%&2%@}6%3’% Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.1 PIERPAR Z 8t R R A B
o (8D

© EERBEETR

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation (continued)

For retail IRB approach, the effect of the credit risk mitigation is incorporated into the
internal risk parameters of PD or LGD depending on the nature of the guarantees and
collaterals for calculating the risk exposures.

The credit and market risk concentrations within the credit risk mitigation (recognised
collateral and guarantees for capital calculation) used by the Bank are under a low
level.

Up to the date of report, for capital calculation, except OTC derivative transactions
cleared by central counterparties and derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements, the Bank has not used any other on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet
recognised netting for credit risk mitigation. The Bank also has not used any
recognised credit derivative contracts for credit risk mitigation.
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEEREE (&)

3.1 PIERPAR Z 8t R R A B
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(D) AEEFR R BIERH
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SEERIFERIRE] > DL
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LEHESHIFHRTEE
Az 2 AL =
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A BRI AERE A 52
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JETIRERY B B
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3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems

The Bank has established a comprehensive control mechanism to ensure the
integrity, accuracy and consistency of the rating systems including the processes for
using the risk components in the day-to-day business to assess credit risk.

All of IRB risk models are approved by the RC of the Board.

In order to achieve reasonably accurate risk ratings assignment, the Bank has
established a rating approval process which is independent from the sales and
marketing units. Since internal rating is one of the key inputs to credit decision
making, a control mechanism is put in place to ensure the integrity, accuracy and
consistency of the rating assignment. For the wholesale (corporate and bank) credit
portfolio, internal ratings are normally approved by credit officers who are functionally
separated from the sales and marketing units.

The rating assignment and risk quantification process of retail portfolio are highly
automated. As an integral part of the daily credit assessment process, the accuracy
and completeness of data input for automatic rating assignment are verified by units
independent from business development function.

187



A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

%%%#&‘Z%ﬁﬁﬁa‘i% Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

W

3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.1 NEEEAR A4 R BB AE K 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
oy (8)
(D) WNEFTFER SRR

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

B (8D

HREE A SRAT (5 & b
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The obligor rating is reviewed at least annually as required by the Bank’s credit risk
policy. When credit events occur to the obligor, rating review is triggered promptly in
accordance with the Bank’s credit risk policy.

Rating override is designed to allow credit analyst to include any other relevant credit
information that has not yet been captured by the rating models. For reasons of
conservatism and prudential considerations, overrides are unlimited in terms of
downgrades but more restricted for upgrades. All upgrades will be limited to a
maximum of two sub-grades supported by a very narrowly pre-defined list of
appropriate reasons. All overrides need to be signed off by a higher level of credit
approval authority. The internal rating policy sets a trigger point of 10% overrides on
rating cases. The use of overrides and override reasons are analysed by BOCHK as
part of performance review on IRB rating models in group level.
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
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3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

The performance of internal rating system is put under ongoing periodic monitoring™.
The effectiveness of the internal rating system and processes are reviewed by
independent control functions. The model maintenance unit conducts assessment on
the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the rating systems while the
validation unit performs comprehensive review of the internal rating system. Internal
audit reviews the internal rating system and the operations of the related credit risk
control units. The results of the review are reported to the Board and senior
management regularly.

A model validation team of BOCHK which is independent from the model development
unit and rating assignment units, conducts periodic model validations using both
qualitative and quantitative analysis in group level. Model acceptance standards are
established by BOCHK to ensure the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of
the rating systems meet regulatory and management requirements. Review of a rating
model will be triggered if the performance of the model deteriorates materially against
pre-determined tolerance limit.

(E) Approach for determining provisions

The approach in determining provisions is in line with the Bank’s accounting policies.
For details, please refer to Note 2.14 “Impairment of financial assets” to the Financial
Statements.

o Note:
1. AR R s T R
EAEUEEBES T -

1. The model performance tracking and model validation are conducted by BOCHK in group level.
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEEREE (&)

3.2 NP ELEAEET 3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach

YRR AR

TNEYITRARITEES R The tables below show the Bank’'s exposures other than securitisation exposures
RE A B AR AE SN & (including the EAD of on-balance sheet exposures and off-balance sheet exposures) by
TE N R A FE B ST B each IRB calculation approach.

STEAVERERIE (BIEE
EAARNREEAM
FOMVEN R BAIE) -

hioe Corporate
AT Bank
Ee Retail
PN &0: 7y Residential
HEEHE mortgages to
Hik individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies
BESIEER Qualifying
4= revolving retail
HAEAEE Other retalil to
individuals
EE/ NP Small business
retail
Al Others

2016
ERAER ZERK

FREERE  BESEEA PR e Ebx

RS BENS BEE  REEERRR YN e
Supervisory

Slotting Retail Specific
FIRB Criteria IRB  Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
AT BEWETIT EWETIT AW BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
27,103,708 - - - 27,103,708
14,445,179 - - - 14,445,179
- - 2,954,225 - 2,954,225
- - 1,982 - 1,982
- - 3,403,630 - 3,403,630
- - 310,622 - 310,622
- - - 2,622,114 2,622,114
41,548,887 - 6,670,459 2,622,114 50,841,460
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.2 NP ELEAEET 3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach (continued)
B R ()

2015
FLBREES TERNHS
FRAREAE  BRE YRR FEAREAE e JE e
FHEE FHEE FHEE HEEFREE HJE P
Supervisory
Slotting Retail Specific
FIRB Criteria IRB Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
BT T BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3 Corporate 25,271,040 - - - 25,271,040
$RAT Bank 18,445,081 - - - 18,445,081
B Retail
EPN-&5: 7 Residential
EilEsE=tieis mortgages to
Bk individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies - - 2,946,175 - 2,946,175
EERIER Qualifying
KE revolving retail - - 1,900 - 1,900
HAth(# N EE Other retail to
individuals - - 2,846,929 - 2,846,929
TE/ N\ Small business
retail - - 350,175 - 350,175
HAl Others - - - 2,076,082 2,076,082
43,716,121 - 6,145,179 2,076,082 51,937,382
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.3 NIRRT EIATE: 3.3 Exposures subject to supervisory estimates under the IRB approach

B E AR R AR

NRANTASRITEL N ER The table below shows the total EAD of the Bank’s exposures subject to supervisory
SR FRREETEA N 2 EE estimates under the use of IRB approach (including the specialised lending subject to
FUE R HYE L bR the supervisory slotting criteria approach).

1 (REEE AT
FATHVEPIMEHEE) -

2016 2015
T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
3 Corporate 27,103,708 25,271,040
$RIT Bank 14,445,179 18,445,081
HoAt Others 2,622,114 2,076,082
44,171,001 45,792,203
34 ZiEERBEETHRE 3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used
B
(A) ZER kiR E (A) Exposures covered by recognised collateral
BaRiE
TRINTRASRITERF The table below shows the Bank’s exposures under the use of FIRB approach (after
FLBEA AR L HE ST the effect of any on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are
BUET > itz (5R covered by recognised collateral after the application of haircuts required under the
17 (BA) HA) Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions
HIRLE 1F TR 52 and derivative contracts.
AT G B Y fE B
EYE (Bt RAERE
EAERNNEEA
EFRINE R
ERRCEE ) o SRR
ARYET A LGS SRR
BXGRITET RS
&Je
2016 2015
AT ATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
¥ Corporate 4,981,546 6,215,849
RIT Bank 7,641 5,151
4,989,187 6,221,000
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

34 ZEERBGEREITEMRE 3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used (continued)
HEBRIE (8D

(B) ZeBuliEfRiRERE (B) Exposures covered by recognised guarantees
bt
NERYIRA SR T E The table below shows the Bank’s exposures (after the effect of any on-balance
(8R173E (BEAR) # sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are covered by recognised
RIIY HFRE 17 LR guarantees after the application of haircuts required under the Banking (Capital)
B e LR R IERY Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions and derivative
AR E (Bt kE contracts.
& EARENERE
ERERINGEFE

FTEUARIEE) - IEE
JE\ B AR AL A B AR RS

FRNERL S R ATA L
HEL -

2016 2015
BT HEMETTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
13 Corporate 5,574,844 3,100,074
$RIT Bank 227,785 461,238
5,802,629 3,561,312
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.5 NEFRERENEATD

3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

The tables below detail the Bank’s total EAD of corporate and bank exposures by
exposure-weighted average risk-weight and exposure-weighted average PD for each

obligor grade as at 31 December.

The EAD and PD disclosed below in respect of corporate and bank exposures have taken
into account the effect of recognised collateral, recognised netting and recognised
guarantees. The Bank did not have any recognised credit derivative contracts.

For definition of each obligor grade, please refer to page 184.

(A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting

criteria approach)

2016
JR BRI R AR
Exposure-

weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT IT % %

HK$’000
Grade 1 - - -
Grade 2 - - -
Grade 3 2,828,078 26.57 0.07
Grade 4 9,276,982 46.39 0.24
Grade 5 11,792,065 81.95 1.08
Grade 6 2,954,659 121.80 5.02
Grade 7 38,523 145.88 27.53
Grade 8/Default 213,401 96.42 100.00

27,103,708
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.5 NERRREBHEIETA 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

R R ST R R e S
2l (&)
(A) EREERE (Fa (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
ERAEE S IEEL criteria approach) (continued)
SFEEREFIESE
£) (8D
2015
JE\Bg AR e JE B A TR
EL R R S b e SEHTIELIE
Exposure-
weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
RERECEE) Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
AT % %
HK$'000
&l 1 Grade 1 - - B
4R 2 Grade 2 - - -
4K 3 Grade 3 2,438,810 23.91 0.06
K 4 Grade 4 7,115,249 44.53 0.23
GRS Grade 5 11,283,477 77.60 1.17
4K 6 Grade 6 4,071,253 109.17 5.24
K7 Grade 7 55,600 203.63 29.62
4RI 8, iEL Grade 8/Default 306,651 247.90 100.00
25,271,040
(B) f¥EEEAE (A (B) Corporate exposures (specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
EEOBERERZE approach)
HIEFIAES)
72016 4 12 H 31 The Bank did not have any corporate exposures of specialised lending using
H o ZA$R17 0 fmE4E A supervisory slotting criteria approach as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). The
BB BRI EE supervisory rating grades and risk-weights of specialised lending are determined in
BT EEN R accordance with section 158 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
JE\FERE (20154 ¢
fi) - HFMEEER

B R AR B R e
B9 GBRITE (&
A #HT) %158 fik
HIRUEEE -
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
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3.5 NERRREBHEIETA 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

196

FE R SRAT R AR b
PG (4D
(C) $RfTREE=IE (C) Bank exposures
2016
JE\Bg R FE IR e e il
Exposure-
weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
WEfS S8R Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT T % %
HK$’000
&l 1 Grade 1 - - B}
4f Al 2 Grade 2 2,890,973 21.92 0.04
K] Grade 3 9,133,192 28.79 0.06
KA 4 Grade 4 2,374,155 50.99 0.16
4f Al 5 Grade 5 46,859 83.05 0.85
&ie Grade 6 _
&7 Grade 7 _
4R 8, iEL Grade 8/Default -
14,445,179
2015
JE A OE B AR HETIIE
B EARYE S fE B e HELGE
Exposure-
weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
NEE S8R Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BT % %
HK$'000
Al L Grade 1 - - -
4l 2 Grade 2 3,286,910 22.38 0.04
4l 3 Grade 3 12,762,597 28.27 0.06
4l 4 Grade 4 2,390,423 47.71 0.14
4R A1 5 Grade 5 5,151 100.01 1.53
Al 6 Grade 6 -
aRAl 7 Grade 7 -
4RI 8, ELY Grade 8/Default -
18,445,081
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.6 NERRREBEHEIETE 3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach
B R R R A

TRIRIN12H3LH %
AL E T A AR

The tables below show breakdown of retail exposures on a pool basis by expected loss
percentage (EL%) range as at 31 December.

BRI -

B ERK Residential mortgages

2016 2015
BT HAETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B E1% Up to 1% 2,946,356 2,945,304
>1% >1% 7,815 804
EY Default 54 67
2,954,225 2,946,175

EERERTE Qualifying revolving retail
2016 2015
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
=% E10% Up to 10% 1,982 1,900
>10% >10% - -
EY Default - _
1,982 1,900

HAEAEE Other retail to individuals
2016 2015
BT AETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
=% E2% Up to 2% 3,191,256 2,765,747
>2% >2% 212,374 80,410
LY Default - 772
3,403,630 2,846,929
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.6 NEEHREEAABEIETE 3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach (continued)

5 B oo A i Y L e 0 i
(&)
BE/NMDEE Small business retail
2016 2015
BT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
&% E1% Up to 1% 304,041 350,144
>1% >1% 6,581 31
L Default - .
310,622 350,175
3.7 BigiB4k L EENSHT 3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates
TR RIEE TR The table below shows the actual losses broken down by class of risk exposure, which
HIEEL - FIZELETE represent the net charges (including write-offs and individually assessed impairment
FENN IR PR EE A EA allowances) made by each class of exposures under the internal ratings-based
T R B AR A approach for the year.
R (B ERS R
AEHE R ELER ) -
2016 2015
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 Corporate 44,462 189,824
AT Bank - -
PN &Es NI E et o Residential mortgages to individuals and
HE property-holding shell companies - -
GERIEREE Quialifying revolving retail - _
HAEAZE Other retail to individuals 469 263
EE/NBE Small business retail - }
44,931 190,087
12T B SR E B Y Decrease in the loan impairment charge of corporate exposures was mainly due to the

JE Vo FEER 2016 £ decrease in the amount of new classified or impaired loans in 2016.
RS E o R SR B
HERR/ D o
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.7 BB RAEENOT 3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

(&)

N E G EYEE RS R The table below shows the expected loss broken down by class of risk exposure, which
THEAEZ: - THEESSZ TS is the estimated loss likely to be incurred arising from the potential default of the obligors
&5 N5t B RS RIS in respect of the exposure over a one-year period.

— A AT RER LTS (R
HffiatiEs% -

2015412 31 H 2014412 H 31 H

TREAER THIHEL

Expected loss Expected loss

at 31 December at 31 December

2015 2014

EWETIT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

13 Corporate 219,325 150,497

AT Bank 5,397 6,474
PN NI E et v ] Residential mortgages to individuals and

=% property-holding shell companies 989 1,498

GEBIPREE Qualifying revolving retail 1 _

FAr{E A ZE Other retail to individuals 9,461 7,396

/N Small business retail 194 296

235,367 166,161
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HEEREE (&)

3.7 BIERK ARG
(&

TEREEHENEREY
R BL{E B QYRR Y
tt -

3%

IRIT

[EPN- &G oA fE R cts st
e

GERBIEREE

HAfE A

TE/NPE

13

SRAT

{8 N R 223 N B RS
vie

GEMKEREE

HAE A

TE/NRE

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

The tables below set out the actual default rate compared against the estimated PD of

the respective portfolio.

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail

200

2016 £/ 2015412 31 H
=3 aES fEERAIRE
Actual default Estimated PD
rate during at 31 December
2016 2015

% %

0.71 1.64

- 0.20

- 0.23

- 0.43

- 0.76

- 0.80

2015 F[H] 201412 A 31 H
HPRELR (GRS RS
Actual default Estimated PD
rate during at 31 December
2015 2014

% %

0.69 1.62

- 0.27

- 0.26

- 0.37

- 0.68

0.29 1.12
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3. NERERRE#ESTE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEERER (&)

3.7 BIERK ARG

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

(&

ULV ISP S P
A E T AT B AR
o LIS AR E B
TEAIG TR > EEEAR
AT{EEFEAHELE » REPRH]
ETRRE TRk BE
TVEAZS - FHIHER
FEEZERBEA G ERNE
B NELHBE AR
& WEH R eI
(B R EE AR T By
515 B R s AR SEAH B B
PR © IMEEE
KERNEERRIEGS
A A P (i SR R
BRI ALY -

HRELY R B
BEYRIEBABHE (3%
JE\fg A BBk F B H (Z
BRI ) I EEL
TR RS —(E AR By
R ZRIIEE -
A HERFER HFHE— 4RI
TR LM -

R - SR i El S
BT HKP £ TR
B AT (TReERE R )
SRS NS
B 5 Y R L

o

SRR
SRR -

It should be noted that expected loss and actual loss are measured and calculated using
different methodologies compliant with relevant regulatory and accounting standards,
which therefore may not be directly comparable. The limitation arises mainly from the
fundamental differences in the definition of “loss”. The expected loss under Basel Accord
which estimates the economic loss arising from the potential default of the obligor by
taking into account the time value of money and including the direct and indirect costs
associated with the recoveries on the credit exposures during the workout process,
while actual loss is the net charge of individually assessed impairment allowances and
write-offs made during the year in accordance with the accounting standards.

The actual default rate is measured by using the number of obligors (for wholesale
exposures) or number of accounts (for retail exposures) defaulted whereas the
estimated PD is an estimate of the long run average default rate over an economic cycle
and is the estimated one-year forward-looking PD from the date of rating assignment.

Hence, actual default rate in a particular year (“point-in-time”) will typically differ from the
estimated PD which is the “through-the-cycle” estimates as economies move above or
below the cyclical norms.

The estimated PD is more conservative than the actual default rate for all asset classes.
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ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁj% Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4, fEE (EEEE) 51E 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach

4.1 Use of ratings from External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAI”)

The Bank adopts STC approach based on external credit rating to determine the risk
weight of the small residual credit exposures that was approved by the HKMA to be
exempted from FIRB approach and the following asset classes of exposures:

- Sovereign
- Public sector entity
- Multilateral development bank

The Bank performs the ECAI issuer ratings mapping to its exposures in banking book in
accordance with Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules. The ECAIs recognised by the
Bank include Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

4.2 Credit risk mitigation

For credit exposures adopting STC approach, the main types of recognised collaterals
include cash deposits, debt securities and equities for non-past due exposures. In
addition, real estate collateral is also recognised for past due exposures. The treatment
of recognised collateral is compliant with the comprehensive approach for credit risk
mitigation as mentioned in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For credit exposures under STC
approach, the recognised guarantees for capital calculation include the guarantees
given by sovereigns, public sector entities, multilateral development banks, or banks and
corporates with ECAI issuer ratings both exempted from FIRB approach for credit
exposures, that have lower risk weights than the counterparty. Besides, the recognised
netting for credit risk mitigation includes derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements.
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4. RE (E8EAR)

ETHEERR (&)

4.3 R bR R BgR s
R (EERE) STEA

THIERERRE

B AR R RE
BITHRE
ZIESRIRT
T
13
EETE
EEZEHEK
A e S A

R
bl e

HEARRN R R
HegH

HEARRINER R
FREE SRR 5 BT
LT HEHPNTE
7 B ERIME R R
&
IR A AT
THEEY

HEARRINER R
HegH
Eleceadlee N

1,250%]a\ g SR
et

On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereigns
Multilateral development bank
Banks
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are

not past due

Past due exposures

Total on-balance sheet
exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
other than securities
financing transactions and
derivative contracts

Securities financing
transactions and derivative
contracts

Total off-balance sheet
exposures

Total non-securitisation
exposures

Exposures that are risk-weighted
at 1,250%

st& 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach

2016
B R w0 iR
ERER Total Total

'&ﬁ *

bR BREE ) )ﬂmn*&@ﬁ exposures exposures
G Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount covered by covered by
Total TERPER  RRERPAR TEER THESEL  recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
AEToT BT BT BBt BT B%TT AT
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
4,494,491 4,494,491 - 8,878 - - -
37,358 37,358 - - - - -
24,952 24,952 - 4,990 - - -
442,157 - 394,505 - 394,505 47,652 -
106,038 - 100,796 - 75,597 5,242 -
4,256 - 4,256 - 2,128 - -
356,357 - 343,904 - 344,054 12,453 -
1,290 - 1,290 - 1,935 - -
5,466,899 4,556,801 844,751 13,868 818,219 65,347 -
11,810 - 11,810 - 8,882 - -
94,618 - 94,618 - 1,017 103,394 -
106,428 - 106,428 - 9,899 103,394 -
5,573,327 4,556,801 951,179 13,868 828,118 168,741 -
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4. RE (E8EAR)

ETHEERR (&)

4.3 R bR R BgR s
R (EERE) STEA

THEREBRE (8

GEAEENEBEEE On-balance sheet exposures

BITHRE

(/AT

3%

EETE

FETHEBHEX

R A A
A

R

HEAARNERRE
He
B AR NE BRI
bRt 7 Rl S 5 AT
LT HEHYNTE
FEAFRINERRR
&
IR S AT
THEE&Y

B AR NE BRI
Has

1EH

pii |

I LR R R
“ag

1, 25006z 1 2R 9 L
i

* RlE R R T
& (RT3 (FEF)
KA STERIEDR R
TRIE -

Sovereigns

Banks

Corporates

Regulatory retail

Residential mortgage loans

Other exposures which are
not past due

Past due exposures

Total on-balance sheet
exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
other than securities
financing transactions and
derivative contracts

Securities financing
transactions and derivative
contracts

Total off-balance sheet
exposures

Total non-securitisation
exposures

Exposures that are risk-weighted
at 1,250%

st& 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach (continued)

2015

EACIEe i PR
e LY S
} SRR . Total Total

S - -
i R ) E&ngbﬂﬁéﬁiﬁﬂ exposures exposures
G Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount covered by covered by
Total R RERTR FETAR S recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BT B TT BTt BETOC BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,334,720 3,334,720 - 6,188 - - -
23,812 23,812 - 4,762 - - -
368,500 - 367,241 - 367,241 1,259 -
94,803 - 88,847 - 66,636 5,956 -
5,274 - 5,274 - 2,637 - -
283,068 - 262,889 - 263,039 20,179 -
25 - 25 - 37 - -
4,110,202 3,358,532 724,276 10,950 699,590 27,394 -
145,955 - 145,955 - 144,363 - -
95,017 - 95,017 - 8 - -
240,972 - 240,972 - 144,371 - -
4,351,174 3,358,532 965,248 10,950 843,961 27,394 -

* Recognised credit risk mitigation satisfying the requirements and conditions set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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5. XGEFEEEEMHER 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

The Bank’s counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts and securities financing
transactions both in trading and banking book is subject to the same risk management
framework as mentioned in Note 4 to the Financial Statements. The Bank establishes credit
limit through formal credit approval procedures to control the pre-settlement credit risk arising
from derivative transactions and settlement limit to control the settlement risk arising from
foreign exchange-related transactions for counterparties in both the trading book and banking
book. The Bank monitors the risk exposure due to fluctuations in the market by using the
current exposure and the potential exposure value of the transactions. Exceptions or
excesses are timely and closely identified and monitored by RMD.

Credit equivalent amount and capital charge for the relevant counterparty credit exposures
are determined following the regulatory capital requirements. Currently, the Bank has adopted
the Current Exposure Method to measure the relevant credit equivalent amount, which
comprises current exposures and potential future exposures. The relevant counterparty
default risk capital charge is calculated under the FIRB/STC approach. In addition, the Bank
has adopted standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the
relevant counterparty CVA capital charge.

The Bank establishes prudent eligibility criteria and haircut policy of debt securities being
pledged as collateral for securities financing transactions.

The Bank formulates policy for classification of credit assets according to the PD of
counterparties and the period of overdue. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, impairment allowance will be provided according to HKFRS and
regulatory requirements.

In controlling and monitoring of wrong-way risk (risk of existence of positive correlation
between the PD of a counterparty and credit exposures driven by mark-to-market value of the
underlying transactions), specific wrong-way risk transactions are generally not allowed.
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5. XGEFEEEETHR 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
RiE (&)

5.1 NEEEERERTEIA TH

%%%&Z?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’% Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the internal ratings-based approach

The following table summarises the Bank’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising

from securities financing transactions and derivative contracts calculated using the
Current Exposure Method. There is no effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on

these exposures.

Gross total positive fair value
Default risk exposures after the effect of valid

bilateral netting agreements

Less: Value of recognised collateral
- Debt securities
- Others

Default risk exposures after the effect of valid
bilateral netting agreements net of
recognised collateral

Default risk exposures by counterparty type

Corporates
Banks

Risk-weighted amounts by counterparty type

Corporates
Banks

Notional amounts of recognised credit
derivative contracts that provide credit

protection

2016 2015
TTETEAY TETEEY
Derivative Derivative
contracts contracts
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,351 2,140
9,409 57,691

- (21,121)

9,409 36,570

256 -

9,153 36,570
9,409 36,570

257 -

2,585 10,350
2,842 10,350

There were no outstanding securities financing transactions under the internal ratings-based

approach as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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5. XGHFEEEEMER 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
RiE (8

5.2 &% (EERIR) st8E 5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

THXEHFEERR

ARIE

T FME Al A SR 1T R IR The following table summarises the Bank’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
17 BB AR E T kst E e from derivative contracts calculated using the Current Exposure Method. There is no
HFEETTTAETESY effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on these exposures.

FREEZERVE R RIE > I H.
R RS E R AR S

BRI e -

2016 2015
TTETEAY TR TEEY
Derivative Derivative
contracts contracts
BT HAEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
4ETFENE Gross total positive fair value 96,084 87,195
E G AR e LS B Default risk exposures after the effect of valid
HNHE R AN E bilateral netting agreements
&\ 1 JE B A s 94,618 95,017
bR Es Less: Value of recognised collateral
- B - Debt securities - _
- Hith - Others (93,506) -
EEA R i RS E Default risk exposures after the effect of valid
HNRE R AN E bilateral netting agreements net of
&R ARG R B HE recognised collateral
mm R B R 1,112 95,017
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5. XGEFEEEETHR 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
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Default risk exposures by counterparty type

Sovereigns

Banks

Corporates

Regulatory retail

Other exposures which are not past due
exposures

Past due exposures

Risk-weighted amounts by counterparty type

Sovereigns

Banks

Corporates

Regulatory retail

Other exposures which are not past due
exposures

Past due exposures

Notional amounts of recognised credit

derivative contracts that provide credit
protection
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5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach
(continued)

2016 2015
FIETEEY TTETEEY
Derivative Derivative
contracts contracts
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

- 604

23,510 94,413
71,108 -
94,618 95,017
288 8

729 -

1,017 8

There were no outstanding securities financing transactions under
(credit risk) approach as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

the standardised
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6. Capital charge for market risk

Under the standardised (market risk)
approach
Foreign exchange exposures (net)
Interest rate exposures
- Non-securitisation exposure

Commodity exposures
Equity exposures

Under the internal models approach
General foreign exchange and interest

rate exposures

Capital charge for market risk

209

2016 2015
ARTIL AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
12,877 9,509
12,877 9,509
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6. TIEEEEARTER (&) 6. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

Fof e (2011 3T (EA)

(IERT) AR - st E
BEATDR AR R R (E &
KRR o TRINHASRITIAN
HET RA R R SR
b Ri B BN BRI G T LR R
18 R 2Bt " -

Market risk regulatory capital charge is calculated under the Banking (Capital) (Amendment)

Rules 2011 to incorporate capital charge for stressed VAR. The following table sets out the

IMM VAR and stressed VAR® for the general market risk exposure calculated under the IMM

approach of the Bank.

R12H s E=cR E=cR
3 A1H  RiE#E &E#E PYRE
Minimum Maximum  Average
At 31 for the for the for the
Year December year year year
ERTIL BRTOT BETC BN
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
GNP B FIR g 2 N ERfE =, IMM VAR for foreign exchange 2016 1,489 891 1,580 1,435
FHEAE RS E and interest rate risk
2015 933 370 1,083 717
SRR > A EEEE IMM VAR for foreign exchange 2016 1,489 891 1,580 1,435
JEB E risk
2015 933 370 1,083 717
FIRE S > NS ERETEE IMM VAR for interest rate risk 2016 - - - -
JEB E
2015 - - - -
GNP By FIR e 2 7 BRJE\fz Stressed VAR for foreign exchange 2016 2,045 1,808 2,064 2,002
L= and interest rate risk
2015 1,856 1,154 1,913 1,446
A1NDEE JiE\ e > A7 R e (L Stressed VAR for  foreign 2016 2,043 1,805 2,063 2,000
exchange risk
2015 1,853 1,154 1,910 1,445
TR > <2 BR s (E Stressed VAR for interest rate risk 2016 2 - 10
2015 - 7

e

1. i e B B AR B
ot A e L e 2 R e (L
T 99% E{F/KFR 10 K
AT - Z B E R A B
JE\f (B R AR R 05 7% » FIFISE
4 AT A 12 (8 F B R
THYRE LSRRG -

Note:

1. IMM VAR and stressed VAR measures used for market risk regulatory capital purposes are calculated to a

99% confidence level and use a 10-day holding period. The stressed VAR uses the same methodology as

the VAR model and is generated with inputs calibrated to the historical market data from a continuous

12-month period of significant financial stress relevant to the Group’s portfolio.
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6. TIEEIEEARTR (&) 6. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

TEPIRAEEREEE T

The graph below shows the regulatory back-testing result of the Bank’s market risk under IMM

ARTHIRBIREEEN  pproach.
AR -
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There were 2 actual losses exceeding the VAR for the Bank in 2016 as shown in the
back-testing results (2015: 4).
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7. Capital charge for operational risk

2016 2015

BT AT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Capital charge for operational risk 173,631 170,908

The Bank uses the standardised (operational risk) approach to calculate its operational risk
capital charge.

. Equity exposures in banking book

Equity holdings in other entities are accounted for in accordance with the underlying
intentions of holdings at the inception of acquisition. The classifications for equity holdings
taken for relationship and strategic purposes will be separated from those taken for other
purposes (including capital appreciation). Investments in equity shares which are intended to
be held on a continuing basis, but which do not comprise investments in subsidiaries, are
classified as available-for-sale securities and are reported in the balance sheet as
“Investment in securities”.

For equity exposures in banking book other than subsidiaries, the Bank applies the same
accounting treatment and valuation methodologies as detailed in the Notes 2.8(4), 2.11, 2.12
and 2.14 to the Financial Statements, further details on their valuation are outlined in Note
5.1 “Financial instruments measured at fair value” to the Financial Statements. If additional
investment is made subsequently such that an investee becomes an associate, joint venture
or subsidiary, then the investment is reclassified in accordance with the Bank’s accounting
policies.

Gains or losses related to equity exposures are summarised below:

2016 2015

BT AETT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Realised gains from sales - 102
Unrealised gains on revaluation recognised in

reserves but not through income statement 4,697 4,363
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The Management

Chief Executive
FU Kim

Deputy General Manager
CHAN Yiu Fai

FAN Wing Yu
FUNG Chi Lap

Assistant General Manager
CHANG Yu Man

LAM Sung Pan

WONG Siu Man

YIP Man Kai
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Branch Network

TR
BRANCH (Br.)

BARE

HONG KONG ISLAND

HESTT

Central Br.

E/a3tT
North Point Br.

BT
Wanchai Br.

=
Sheung Wan Br.

P T

Western Br.

SR T
Quarry Bay Br.

BT
Aberdeen Br.

JURE
KOWLOON

LTI
Hung Hom Br.

BT
Kwun Tong Br.

T T
Sham Shui Po Br.

HOH R T
San Po Kong Br.

SR ST
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HLEST

Castle Peak Road Br.

T

Kowloon Bay Br.

BT
Tokwawan Br.

BEUNT
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

A & a4y

@hiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Hirht
ADDRESS

R IREEE T 78 5%
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

I AL EIE 390-394 i T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Point, H.K.

T (TR e R 323-331 JEMHL N C A1 D &
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

Tk FIREG AT 315-319 HRHh T 3 340
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

TP 2R ETE 443-445 ST 13 i

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

E A FRURILEE 967-967A St T
GJ/F, No. 967-967A King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

FEHEE A 138-140 SFi T
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

FJURBATRENTAF LRl 23-25 SRt T
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUHEBIEIE 398-402 S T A Bifir
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUREAKIS Z5 5% A 235-237 5t T
G/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JUREHTH RA R e 61-63 SR T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

JUBE IR EOEE 117-119 SR
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

JUREFKYS 7 LI3E 226-228 5Ei T
G/F, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

TUBES LR BRI R Rt T 10 K2 10A Siéf

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

JURETJIVEE 78-80W 5t I 11-13 54
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

FUBEREE L0 7 18 TO3A 5k
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.
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B
TELEPHONE

(852) 2843 0187

(852) 2570 6381

(852) 2572 2823

(852) 2544 1678

(852) 2548 2298

(852) 2811 3131

(852) 2553 0603

(852) 2362 0051

(852) 2343 4174

(852) 2789 8668

(852) 2328 5691

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 2796 8968

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 2322 3313
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Branch Network (continued)

TR
BRANCH (Br.)

e
NEW TERRITORIES

BT

Tuen Mun Br.

SERL 31T
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

KIAFIH 5317
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br

FEWCRES T
Belvedere Garden Br.

EBAT
Tsuen Wan Br.

VOHBERSEST
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

BT
Ma On Shan Br.

AT
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

HEdPst
MAINLAND OF CHINA

[EF9931T

Xiamen Br.

BEEIAT
Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

BIELLST
Guanyinshan Sub-Br.

wINIAT
Fuzhou Br.

Hirht
ADDRESS

Fry P22 el HAN.D.S N & 1 #% N-125 &
Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.

WSR2 AR RLRAS T 1 SR
Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T.

H SRR RS2 A T 112-114 5
Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T.

SRS ERCE S = BRI EIS T BA Skl
Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,
N.T.

FrlsEE)IHE 131-135 SFHL T
G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

WU ERRITRER Y 11 F7 5Ral
Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T.

Hrot R BT R L 3 8 313 Sk

Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T.

T SR R S e R 2 1 238 S
Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate,
Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

hEtREAEFTTERES 861 7 11 111-113 BT
Unit 111-113, 1/F, No. 861 Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

HEER A E T R eI E 68-71 57
No.68-71 Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

FREITREEA E P RIS ARG 170 5% 9 9748 17 J@ 1702E K 1703A =

B
TELEPHONE

(852) 3988 9508

(852) 2487 3332

(852) 2656 3386

(852) 2411 6789

(852) 3988 9518

(852) 2601 5888

(852) 2640 0733

(852) 2178 2278

(86-592) 585 7690

(86-592) 619 3300

Unit 1702E & 1703A, No. 9 Building, No. 170 Tapu East Road, Siming District, (86-592) 599 0520

Xiamen, Fujian Province, China
T ETEE A RN T LIRS 210 SRENFERE 148

1/F, International Building, No. 210 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
China
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(86-591) 8781 0078



